


































































































































































































































AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
653

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
642

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
647

AutoCAD SHX Text
648

AutoCAD SHX Text
649

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
651

AutoCAD SHX Text
652

AutoCAD SHX Text
653

AutoCAD SHX Text
654

AutoCAD SHX Text
655

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
640

AutoCAD SHX Text
643

AutoCAD SHX Text
644

AutoCAD SHX Text
645

AutoCAD SHX Text
646

AutoCAD SHX Text
647

AutoCAD SHX Text
648

AutoCAD SHX Text
649

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
651

AutoCAD SHX Text
652

AutoCAD SHX Text
653

AutoCAD SHX Text
654

AutoCAD SHX Text
655

AutoCAD SHX Text
656

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 655.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 655.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 656.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 655.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 654.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 653.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 653.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SPOT 652.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 12" RCP FL 655.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 12" RCP FL 655.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 653.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 654.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 654.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 656.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 656.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 657.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 657.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 657.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL SPOT 65733

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 653.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 654.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 654.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 656.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 656.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 657.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 657.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX PAVE 656.93



AutoCAD SHX Text
1069.00' PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1099.95' PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
660.00' PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
660.73' PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 1 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 2 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 3 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 4 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. YALE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 10 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 8 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 7 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 6 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT A  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT B  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT C  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT D  2750 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 11 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 12 220'-0" X 50'-0" 11,000 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 9 220'-0" X 113'-6" 24,970 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 5 220'-0" X 113'-6" 24,970 SQ FT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
113'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
113'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
220'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
51'-1"



AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1











































AIR GUARD SUBSTATION
PREPARED: October 20, 2025

SHEET 2 OF 2

DEED OF DEDICATION
AIR GUARD SUBSTATION

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

AEP OKLAHOMA TRANSMISSION COMPANY, INC., AN OKLAHOMA CORPORATION IS THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY
AS DEPICTED ON THE ATTACHED PLAT AND IS HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE ñOWNERò, SAID PROPERTY
BEING MORE COMPLETELY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOW, TO-WIT:

DON EATON ADDITION, LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1) - 2.33-AC

TULSA AIRPORTS IMPROVEMENT TRUST, AN OKLAHOMA PUBLIC TRUST RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2022 IN BK. 6864
PG. 10.

A TRACT OF LAND THAT IS PART OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1), DON EATON ADDITION, A SUBDIVISION IN THE
CITY AND COUNTY OF TULSA, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, SAID
TRACT OF LAND BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT TWO (2); THENCE NORTH  89Á45'46" WEST ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT TWO (2) FOR 209.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00Á08'15" EAST FOR 485.89 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 89Á45'16" EAST FOR 209.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT TWO (2);
THENCE SOUTH 00Á08'15" WEST ALONG EASTERLY LINE FOR 485.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

DON EATON ADDITION, LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1) - 1.45-AC

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1), DONE EATON ADDITION, A
SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF TULSA, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLOT
THEREOF,

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTH 89 45'16" WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID LOT 2, A DISTANCE OF 209.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 89
45'16" WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 130.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 08'15" EAST A DISTANCE
OF 485.89 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 45'16" EAST A DISTANCE OF 130.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 08'15" WEST A
DISTANCE OF 485.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 1.45 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

THE INTENT ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS TO BE THE SAME PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN WARRANTY DEED
BOOK 6864, PAGE 10.

THIS PROPERTY DESCRIPTION WAS PREPARED ON JANUARY 3, 2022, BY KENNETH E. HAUK, PROFESSIONAL LAND
SURVEYOR NO. 1300.

THE OWNER HAS CAUSED THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND TO BE SURVEYED, STAKED, PLATTED INTO
ONE (1) LOT AND ONE (1) BLOCK, IN CONFORMITY WITH THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, AND HAS DESIGNATED THE
SUBDIVISION AS ñAIR GUARD SUBSTATION", A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA
(HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS ñAIR GUARD SUBSTATION" OR THE ñSUBDIVISIONò)

SECTION I. PUBLIC UTILITIES
A.PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS

1. THE OWNER HEREBY DEDICATES TO THE PUBLIC THE UTILITY EASEMENTS DESIGNATED AS ñU/Eò OR
ñUTILITY EASEMENTò FOR THE SEVERAL PURPOSES OF CONSTRUCTING, MAINTAINING, OPERATING,
REPAIRING, REPLACING, AND/OR REMOVING ANY AND ALL PUBLIC UTILITIES, INCLUDING STORM
SEWERS, SANITARY SEWERS, TELEPHONE AND COMMUNICATION LINES, ELECTRIC POWERLINES AND
TRANSFORMERS, GAS LINES, WATER LINES AND CABLE TELEVISION LINES, TOGETHER WITH ALL
FITTINGS, INCLUDING THE POLES, WIRES, CONDUITS, PIPES, VALVES, METERS, MANHOLES AND
EQUIPMENT FOR EACH OF SUCH FACILITIES AND ANY OTHER APPURTENANCES THERETO, WITH THE
RIGHTS OF INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND UPON THE UTILITY EASEMENTS FOR THE USES AND
PURPOSES STATED, PROVIDED THE OWNER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN,
OPERATE, LAY AND REPAIR OR REPLACE WATER LINES AND SEWER LINES, TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT
OF INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR SUCH CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OPERATION, LAYING, REPAIRING
AND RE-LAYING OVER, ACROSS AND ALONG ALL OF THE UTILITY EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON THE PLAT,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF FURNISHING WATER AND/OR SEWER SERVICES TO AREAS DEPICTED ON THE
PLAT. THE OWNER HEREIN IMPOSES A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT, WHICH COVENANT SHALL BE BINDING
ON EACH LOT OWNER AND SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA (HEREINAFTER
THE ñCITYò), AND BY THE SUPPLIER OF ANY AFFECTED UTILITY SERVICE, THAT WITHIN THE UTILITY
EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT NO BUILDING, STRUCTURE OR OTHER ABOVE OR
BELOW GROUND OBSTRUCTION THAT INTERFERES WITH STATED USES AND PURPOSES OF THE UTILITY
EASEMENTS SHALL BE PLACED, ERECTED, INSTALLED OR MAINTAINED, PROVIDED NOTHING HEREIN
SHALL BE DEEMED TO PROHIBIT DRIVES, PARKING AREAS, CURBING, LANDSCAPING AND CUSTOMARY
SCREENING FENCES THAT DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBSTRUCTION.

B.WATER, SANITARY SEWER, AND STORM SEWER SERVICE

1. THE OWNER OF ANY LOT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC WATER MAINS,
SANITARY SEWER MAINS, AND STORMS SEWERS LOCATED ON THE OWNER'S LOT.

2. WITHIN UTILITY EASEMENTS AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, THE
ALTERATION OF GRADE FROM THE CONTOURS EXISTING UPON THE COMPLETION OF THE INSTALLATION
OF A PUBLIC WATER MAIN, SANITARY SEWER MAIN, OR STORM SEWER OR ANY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY WHICH, IN THE JUDGEMENT OF THE CITY OF TULSA, WOULD INTERFERE WITH PUBLIC WATER
MAINS, SANITARY SEWER MAINS, OR STORM SEWERS SHALL BE PROHIBITED.

3. THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR IT'S SUCCESSORS, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ORDINARY
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC WATER SYSTEMS, SANITARY SEWER MAINS, AND STORM SEWERS BUT THE
LOT OWNER SHALL PAY FOR DAMAGE OR RELOCATION OF SUCH FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED
BY ACTS OF THE LOT OWNER, OR THE LOT OWNER'S AGENT AND/OR CONTRACTORS.

4. THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR IT'S SUCCESSORS, SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE RIGHT OF ACCESSED
TO ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, OR
OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING,
MAINTAINING, REMOVING OR REPLACING ANY PORTIONS OF UNDERGROUND WATER, SANITARY SEWER,
OR STORM SEWER FACILITIES.

5. THE COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA,
OKLAHOMA, OR ITS SUCCESSORS, AND THE OWNER OF EACH LOT AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THESE
COVENANTS.

C.PAVING AND LANDSCAPING WITHIN EASEMENTS

THE OWNER OF ANY LOT DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
REPAIR OF DAMAGE TO LANDSCAPING AND PAVING OCCASIONED BY INSTALLATION OR NECESSARY
MAINTENANCE OF UNDERGROUND WATER, SANITARY SEWER, STORM SEWER, NATURAL GAS,
COMMUNICATION, CABLE TELEVISION OR ELECTRIC FACILITIES WITHIN THE EASEMENT AREAS DEPICTED
UPON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, PROVIDED THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS SUCCESSORS, OR
THE SUPPLIER OF THE UTILITY SERVICE SHALL USE REASONABLE CARE IN THE PERFORMANCE OF SUCH
ACTIVITIES.

D.UTILITY SERVICE

1. OVERHEAD LINES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE AND CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES MAY
BE LOCATED WITHIN THE EASEMENTS ABUTTING STREET RIGHT OF WAY, STREET LIGHT POLES OR
STANDARDS MAY BE SERVED BY OVERHEAD LINE OR UNDERGROUND CABLE, AND ELSEWHERE
THROUGHOUT THE SUBDIVISION, ALL SUPPLY LINES INCLUDING ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE
TELEVISION AND GAS LINES SHALL BE LOCATED UNDERGROUND IN EASEMENTS DEDICATED FOR
GENERAL UTILITY SERVICES AND IN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE PUBLIC STREETS AS DEPICTED ON THE
ACCOMPANYING PLAT.  SERVICE PEDESTALS AND TRANSFORMERS, AS SOURCES OF SUPPLY AT
SECONDARY VOLTAGES, MAY ALSO BE LOCATED IN GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENTS.

2. UNDERGROUND SERVICE CABLES AND GAS SERVICE LINES TO ALL STRUCTURES WITHIN THE
SUBDIVISION MAY BE EXTENDED FROM THE NEAREST GAS MAIN, SERVICE PEDESTAL OR
TRANSFORMER TO THE POINT OF USAGE DETERMINED BY THE LOCATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF
SUCH STRUCTURE UPON THE LOT, PROVIDED UPON INSTALLATION OF A SERVICE CABLE OR GAS
SERVICE LINE TO A PARTICULAR STRUCTURE, THE SUPPLIER OF SERVICE SHALL THEREAFTER BE
DEEMED TO HAVE A DEFINITIVE, PERMANENT, EFFECTIVE AND NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT ON THE LOT,
COVERING A 5 FOOT STRIP EXTENDING 2.5 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE SERVICE ENTRANCE ON THE
STRUCTURE.

3. THE SUPPLIER OF ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION AND GAS SERVICE, THROUGH ITS
AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO ALL UTILITY
EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OR OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THE DEED OF DEDICATION FOR
THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING, MAINTAINING, REMOVING OR REPLACING ANY PORTION OF THE
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION OR GAS FACILITIES INSTALLED BY THE
SUPPLIER OF THE UTILITY SERVICE.

4. THE OWNER OF ANY LOT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE UNDERGROUND
SERVICE FACILITIES LOCATED ON THE OWNER'S LOT AND SHALL PREVENT THE ALTERATION OF GRADE
OR ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHICH WOULD INTERFERE WITH THE ELECTRIC TELEPHONE CABLE
TELEVISION OR GAS FACILITIES. EACH SUPPLIER OF THESE SERVICES SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
ORDINARY MAINTENANCE OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES BUT THE LOT OWNER SHALL PAY FOR DAMAGE
OR RELOCATION OF SUCH FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED BY ACTS OF THE LOT OWNER OR THE
LOT OWNER'S AGENTS OR CONTRACTORS.

5. THE COVENANT SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY EACH SUPPLIER OF THE
ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION OR GAS SERVICE AND THE OWNER OF ANY LOT AGREES TO
BE BOUND BY THE SE COVENANTS.

E.GAS SERVICE

1. THE SUPPLIER OF GAS SERVICE THROUGH ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE THE
RIGHT OF ACCESS TO ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OR AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR
IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING, REMOVING, REPAIRING, OR
REPLACING ANY PORTION OF THE FACILITIES INSTALLED BY THE SUPPLIER OF GAS SERVICE.

2. THE OWNER OF ANY LOT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE UNDERGROUND GAS
FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE LOT AND SHALL PREVENT THE ALTERATION OF GRADE OR ANY OTHER
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHICH WOULD INTERFERE WITH GAS SERVICE. THE SUPPLIER OF GAS
SERVICE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ORDINARY MAINTENANCE OF ITS FACILITIES BUT THE LOT
OWNER SHALL PAY FOR DAMAGE OR RELOCATION OF FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED BY ACTS
OF THE LOT OWNER, OR THE LOT OWNERS AGENTS OR CONTRACTORS.

3. THE COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE SUPPLIER OF THE
GAS SERVICE AND THE OWNER OF THE LOT AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THESE COVENANTS.

F.LIMITS OF NO ACCESS

THE OWNER HEREBY RELINQUISHES RIGHTS OF VEHICULAR INGRESS OR EGRESS FROM ANY PORTION OF
THE PROPERTY ADJACENT TO  EAST 11 STREET SOUTH WITHIN THE BOUNDS DESIGNATED AS ñLIMITS OF
NO ACCESSò OR ñL.N.Aò ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, WHICH LIMITS OF NO ACCESS MAY BE AMENDED OR
RELEASED BY THE TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION, OR ITS SUCCESSOR, WITH THE
APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED THE STATUTES AND LAWS
OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA PERTAINING THERETO, AND THE LIMITS OF NO ACCESS ESTABLISHED ABOVE
SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

G.SURFACE DRAINAGE

EACH LOT WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL RECEIVE AND DRAIN, IN AN UNOBSTRUCTED MANNER, THE
STORM AND SURFACE WATERS FROM LOTS AND DRAINAGE AREAS OF HIGHER ELEVATION, NO LOT OWNER
SHALL CONSTRUCT OR PERMIT TO BE CONSTRUCTED ANY FENCING OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS WHICH
WOULD IMPAIR THE DRAINAGE OF STORM AND SURFACE WATERS OVER AND ACROSS THE OWNER'S LOT.
THE FOREGOING COVENANT SET FORTH IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY ANY AFFECTED
LOT OWNER AND BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

H.SIDEWALKS

TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND CITY OF TULSA ORDINANCES
REQUIRE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS UNLESS THE CITY HAS AUTHORIZED PAYMENT OF A FEE IN LIEU OF THE
REQUIRED CONSTRUCTION.  THE CITY HAS AUTHORIZED THE PAYMENT OF A FEE IN LIEU OF CONSTRUCTING A
SIDEWALK ALONG THE EAST 11TH STREET FRONTAGE OF THE SUBDIVISION, AND THE FEE SHALL BE PAID PRIOR TO
TMAPC APPROVAL OF THE SUBDIVISION PLAT.  SHOULD A SIDEWALK SUBSEQUENTLY BE CONSTRUCTED,
CONSTRUCTION MUST BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH CITY OF TULSA ENGINEERING DESIGN STANDARDS, AND THE
SIDEWALK MUST BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER OF THE LOT.

I.CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY RESTRICTIONS

NO CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A BUILDING WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ISSUED BY THE CITY
OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA UNTIL CONSTRUCTION OF THE REQUIRED INFRASTRUCTURE (STREETS, WATER,
SANITARY SEWER, STORM AND SEWER SYSTEMS) SERVING THE ENTIRE SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN
COMPLETED AND ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING,
THE CITY MAY AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF A TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY IF, IN THE
CITY'S SOLE DISCRETION, THE CIRCUMSTANCES SUPPORT THE ISSUANCE. FURTHER NOTWITHSTANDING
THE FOREGOING, THE CITY MAY AUTHORIZE THE PHASING OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE
WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION, AND IF PHASING IS AUTHORIZED, A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A
BUILDING WITHIN AN AUTHORIZED PHASE MAY ISSUE UPON THE COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVING THE PARTICULAR PHASE. BUILDING CONSTRUCTION OCCURRING PRIOR TO
THE CITY'S ACCEPTANCE OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE AT THE RISK OF THE OWNER OF THE LOT,
NOTWITHSTANDING THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT OR OF A TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY.

J.DRAINAGE EASEMENT

1. THE OWNER DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC PERPETUAL EASEMENTS ON, OVER, AND ACROSS
THOSE AREAS DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT AS ñDRAINAGE EASEMENTò FOR THE PURPOSES OF
PERMITTING THE OVERLAND FLOW, CONVEYANCE, AND DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER RUNOFF FROM THE
VARIOUS LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION AND FROM PROPERTIES OUTSIDE THE SUBDIVISION AND FOR THE
PURPOSES OF CONSTRUCTING, MAINTAINING, REPAIRING, REMOVING AND REPLACING STORM SEWERS,
AND ANY APPURTENANCES THERETO, WITH THE RIGHTS OF INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND UPON THE
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES STATED.

2. DRAINAGE FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS
SUCCESSORS.

3. NO FENCE, WALL, BUILDING OR OTHER OBSTRUCTION SHALL BE PLACED OR MAINTAINED IN DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS NOR SHALL THERE BE ANY ALTERATION OF GRADE IN THE EASEMENT AREAS UNLESS
APPROVED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, PROVIDED THE PLANTING OF TURF SHALL NOT REQUIRE THE
APPROVAL OF THE CITY.

4. THE ABOVE GROUND AREA OF ANY DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER OF THE
LOT WITHIN WHICH THE EASEMENT IS LOCATED, AND MAINTENANCE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
STANDARDS PRESCRIBED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA. IN THE EVENT THE LOT OWNER FAILS TO
PROPERLY MAINTAIN THE DRAINAGE EASEMENT OR, IN THE EVENT OF THE PLACEMENT OF AN
OBSTRUCTION WITHIN A DRAINAGE EASEMENT, OR THE ALTERATION OF THE GRADE THEREIN, THE CITY OF
TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS DESIGNATED CONTRACTOR MAY ENTER THE EASEMENT AND PERFORM
MAINTENANCE NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE THE INTENDED DRAINAGE FUNCTIONS AND MAY REMOVE ANY
OBSTRUCTION OR CORRECT ANY ALTERATION OF GRADE, AND THE COSTS THEREOF SHALL BE PAID BY THE
LOT OWNER. IN THE EVENT THE LOT OWNER FAILS TO PAY THE COST OF MAINTENANCE AFTER COMPLETION
OF THE MAINTENANCE AND RECEIPT OF A STATEMENT OF COSTS, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, MAY FILE
OF RECORD A COPY OF THE STATEMENT OF COSTS, AND THEREAFTER THE COSTS SHALL BE A LIEN
AGAINST THE LOT. A LIEN ESTABLISHED AS ABOVE PROVIDED MAY BE FORECLOSED BY THE CITY OF TULSA,
OKLAHOMA.

K. STORMWATER DETENTION EASEMENTS

1.THE OWNER DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC PERPETUAL EASEMENTS ON, OVER, AND ACROSS THE
PROPERTY DESIGNATED AND SHOWN ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT AS "STORMWATER DETENTION
EASEMENT" FOR THE PURPOSES OF PERMITTING THE FLOW, CONVEYANCE, RETENTION, DETENTION AND
DISCHARGE OF STORMWATER RUNOFF FROM THE SUBDIVISION.

2. DETENTION, RETENTION AND OTHER DRAINAGE FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE STORMWATER DETENTION
EASEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED
BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

3. NO FENCE, WALL, BUILDING, OR OTHER OBSTRUCTION MAY BE PLACED OR MAINTAINED IN STORMWATER
DETENTION EASEMENTS NOR SHALLTHERE BE ANY ALTERATION OF GRADE IN SAID EASEMENTS UNLESS
APPROVED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

4. DETENTION, RETENTION, AND OTHER DRAINAGE FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER, TO THE
EXTENT NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE THE INTENDED DRAINAGE, RETENTION, AND DETENTION FUNCTIONS
INCLUDING REPAIR OF APPURTENANCES AND REMOVAL OF OBSTRUCTIONS AND SILTATION. DETENTION
FACILITIES SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM
STANDARDS:

a. GRASS AREAS SHALL BE MOWED (IN SEASON) AT REGULAR INTERVALS OF FOUR WEEKS, OR LESS.

b.CONCRETE APPURTENANCES SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN GOOD CONDITION AND REPLACED IF DAMAGED.
c. THE DETENTION EASEMENT SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF DEBRIS.

d. CLEANING OF SILTATION AND VEGETATION FROM CONCRETE CHANNELS SHALL BE PERFORMED TWICE
YEARLY.

5. LANDSCAPING, APPROVED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, SHALL BE ALLOWED WITHIN THE DETENTION
EASEMENTS.

6. IN THE EVENT THE OWNER SHOULD FAIL TO PROPERLY MAINTAIN THE DETENTION, RETENTION, AND OTHER
DRAINAGE FACILITIES OR, IN THE EVENT OF THE PLACEMENT OF AN OBSTRUCTION, OR THE ALTERATION OF
GRADE WITHIN A DETENTION EASEMENT, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS DESIGNATED
CONTRACTOR MAY ENTER AND PERFORM MAINTENANCE NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE THE INTENDED DRAINAGE
AND DETENTION FUNCTIONS AND MAY REMOVE ANY OBSTRUCTION OR CORRECT ANY ALTERATION OF
GRADE, AND THE COSTS THEREOF SHALL BE PAID BY THE OWNER. IN THE EVENT THE OWNER FAILS TO PAY
THE COST OF MAINTENANCE AFTER COMPLETION OF THE MAINTENANCE AND RECEIPT OF A STATEMENT OF
COSTS, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, MAY FILE OF RECORD A COPY OF THE STATEMENT OF COSTS IN
THE LAND RECORDS OF THE TULSA COUNTY CLERK, AND THEREAFTER THE COSTS SHALL BE A LIEN
AGAINST THE PROPERTY IN THE SUBDIVISION. A LIEN ESTABLISHED AS ABOVE PROVIDED MAY BE
FORECLOSED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

SECTION II. ENFORCEMENT, DURATION, AMENDMENT, AND SERVERABILITY
A.ENFORCEMENT

THE RESTRICTIONS HEREIN SET FORTH ARE COVENANTS TO RUN WITH THE LAND AND SHALL BE BINDING
UPON THE OWNER, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. WITHIN THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION I. PUBLIC
UTILITIES, ARE SET FORTH CERTAIN COVENANTS AND THE ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS PERTAINING THERETO
AND WHETHER OR NOT THEREIN SO STATED, THE COVENANTS WITHIN SECTION I SHALL INJURE TO THE
BENEFIT OF, AND BE ENFORCEABLE BY, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA. IF ANY JUDICIAL ACTION IS
BROUGHT TO ENFORCE THE COVENANTS ESTABLISHED IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION THE DEFENSE THAT
THE PARTY INITIATING THE EQUITABLE PROCEEDING HAS AN ADEQUATE REMEDY AT LAW IS HEREBY
WAIVED.

B.DURATION

THESE RESTRICTIONS SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FOR 25 YEARS AND SHALL
AUTOMATICALLY BE CONTINUED THEREAFTER FOR SUCCESSIVE PERIODS OF 10 YEARS EACH, UNLESS
TERMINATED OR AMENDED AS HEREINAFTER PROVIDED.

C.AMENDMENT

THE COVENANTS CONTAINED WITHIN SECTION I. PUBLIC UTILITIES, MAY BE AMENDED OR TERMINATED AT
ANY TIME WHETHER BEFORE OR AFTER THE PERIOD(S) SPECIFIED IN SUBSECTION B., BY A WRITTEN
INSTRUMENT SIGNED AND ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE OWNERS OF THE LOT TO WHICH THE AMENDMENT OR
TERMINATION IS TO BE APPLICABLE AND APPROVED BY THE TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING
COMMISSION, OR ITS SUCCESSORS AND THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

D.SEVERABILITY

INVALIDATION OF ANY RESTRICTION SET FORTH HEREIN, OR ANY PART THEREOF, BY AN ORDER,
JUDGEMENT, OR DECREE OF ANY COURT, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT INVALIDATE OR AFFECT ANY OF THE
OTHER RESTRICTIONS OR ANY PART THEREOF AS SET FORTH HEREIN, WHICH SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE
AND EFFECT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: "THE OWNER" HAS EXECUTED THIS INSTRUMENT THIS           . DAY OF .,
2025

AEP OKLAHOMA TRANSMISSION COMPANY, INC.,

        AN OKLAHOMA CORPORATION

BY: . .

P.TODD IRELAND

ITS ATTORNEY IN FACT

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )

COUNTY OF TULSA)

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS            . DAY OF ., 2025, BY

P.TODD IRELAND   .  AS ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR  AEP OKLAHOMA TRANSMISSION COMPANY.

.

NOTARY PUBLIC

COMMISSION NUMBER : .

EXPIRES: .

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

I, KENNETH E. HAUK, A PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I
HAVE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED, AND PLATTED THE ABOVE TRACT DESIGNATED AS "AIR GUARD SUBSTATION", A
SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA. THE ABOVE PLAT IS AN ACCURATE
REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY.

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY WAS COMPLETED UNDER MY DIRECT AND RESPONSIBLE CHARGE FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND MEETS THE OKLAHOMA MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE
PRACTICE OF LAND SURVEYING AS ADOPTED BY THE OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF LICENSURE FOR
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS.
CONTROL NOTES:

4. ALL HORIZONTAL COORDINATE VALUES SHOWN ARE U.S. SURVEY FEET.

5. ALL CONTROL POINTS ARE BASED ON INITIAL CONTROL CP100.  CONTROL POINT PERRY CORS ARP
(OKPR), TULSA CORS ARP (OKTU) AND TECUMSEH CORS ARP (OKTE) AS BASIS FOR BASE HORIZONTAL.
CONTROL POINT TULSA CORS ARP (OKTU) TO BE USED A BASIS OF BEARING.

6. ALL BEARINGS ARE NAD83(2011) EPOCH:2010 SPC OKN/NAVD88 OPUS/G12A AS DETERMINED BY NGS
ONLINE POSITIONING USER SERVICE (OPUS). ALL DISTANCES ARE GRID WITH A SURFACE ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR OF 1.00008 ( SURFACE=GRID X 1.00008) AS DETERMINED BY OPUS AND ADJUSTED BY FIELD
MEASUREMENTS TO GROUND DISTANCES IN U.S. SURVEY FEET.  ALL FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND
ANGLES APPLIED TO CONTROL POINTS WERE MADE WITH A TRIMBLE R-10 WITH STATIC AND FAST
STATIC POSITION PREFORMANCE OF HORIZONTAL 3MM+0.5 PPM RMS AND VERTICLE 5MM+0.5 PPM RMS.

7. ALL CONTROL POINTS WERE SET AND OBSERVED ON APRIL 6, 2021 AND ADJUSTED TO FINAL
COORDINATES ON APRIL 7, 2021.

I, KENNETH E. HAUK, FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS PROJECT WAS COMPLETED UNDER MY DIRECT AND
RESPONSIBLE CHARGE FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION; THAT THIS GROUND SURVEY
WAS PERFORMED AT THE 95 PERCENT CONFIDENCE LEVEL TO MEET FEDERAL GEOGRAPHIC DATA COMMITTEE
STANDARDS; THAT THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED TO MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR TOPOGRAPHIC AND
PLANIMETRIC MAPPING CONTAINED IN THE OKLAHOMA MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE PRACTICE OF LAND
SURVEYING AS ADOPTED BY THE OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF LICENSURE FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND
LAND SURVEYORS.  THE ORIGINAL DATA WAS OBTAINED ON  APRIL 10, 2021 ; THAT THE SURVEY WAS COMPLETED
ON  APRIL 21, 2021; AND ALL COORDINATES ARE BASED ON NAD83 AND ADJUSTED TO (2011)EPOCH:2010 SPC OKN.

KENNETH E. HAUK, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR #1300

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
COUNTY OF TULSA )

BEFORE ME, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID STATE AND COUNTY, ON THIS            . DAY OF                         .,
2025, PERSONALLY APPEARED KENNETH E. HAUK, TO KNOWN TO THE IDENTICAL PERSON WHO SUBSCRIBED
HIS NAME TO THE FORGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME AS
HIS FREE AND VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED, FOR THE USES AND PURPOSE THEREIN SET FORTH.

.

NOTARY PUBLIC

COMMISSION NUMBER : .

EXPIRES: .

DON EATON ADDITION, LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1) - 2.33-AC
TULSA AIRPORTS IMPROVEMENT TRUST, AN OKLAHOMA PUBLIC TRUST RECORDED NOVEMBER 6, 2002 IN BK. 6864 PG. 10
A TRACT OF LAND THAT IS PART OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1), DON EATON ADDITION, A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY AND

COUNTY OF TULSA, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

DON EATON ADDITION, LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1) - 1.45-AC
A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN AND BEING A PART OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK ONE (1), DON EATON ADDITION, A SUBDIVISION IN

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF TULSA, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

6.11



 

#3586069v1 

OPTION FOR THE SALE AND PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE 

 

 This Option for the Sale and Purchase of Real Estate (this “Option”) is by and between Michael 

P. Eaton, an (un)married individual, whose mailing address is PO Box 1956, Owasso, Oklahoma 74055 

(“Seller”), and Public Service Company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma corporation, whose address is 1 

Riverside Plaza, Columbus, Ohio 43215-2373  (“Buyer”).  The parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Effective Date.  The “Effective Date” of this Option shall be the last date this Option is signed 

by Buyer or Seller. 

 

2. Property to be Conveyed.  Seller hereby grants to Buyer the sole and exclusive right and 

option to purchase approximately 1.45 acres of land, situated in Tulsa County, Oklahoma, having 

Parcel No. 52225031200250, commonly known as 4950 N. Mingo Road, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119 

and more particularly described and/or depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof 

(the “Premises”).  

 

3. Purchase Price.  The purchase price for the Premises shall be One Hundred Thousand and 

No/100 Dollars ($100,000.00) (the “Purchase Price”).  The Purchase Price shall be payable in the 

following manner: 
 

 (a) Buyer shall pay Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) within ten (10) business 

days following Buyer’s execution of this Option, as earnest money (the “Deposit”), to be deposited 

with a title company that Buyer selects, to serve as escrow agent for this transaction (“Escrow Agent”), 

which shall be credited to the Purchase Price at Closing if Buyer purchases the Premises. 

 

Except as expressly provided in this Option, Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00) of 

the Deposit shall be a nonrefundable option fee (the “Option Fee”); provided, however, that should 

Buyer elect to purchase the Premises, the Option Fee shall also be credited to the Purchase Price at 

Closing. 

 

 (b) Buyer shall pay the balance of the Purchase Price by check or wire transfer upon 

delivery of the Deed at Closing. 

 

4. Duration of Option.  The Option term shall begin as of the Effective Date of this Option and 

shall continue in effect thereafter for an initial term of six months (the “Initial Option Term”).  Buyer 

shall have the right to extend the term of this Option for an additional six months (the “Extended Option 

Term”) upon written notice provided to Seller on or before the expiration of the Initial Option Term 

and by depositing with the Escrow Agent the sum of Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($5,000.00).  

If made, this additional deposit shall be part of the “Deposit” and shall be credited to the Purchase Price 

at Closing.  The Initial Option Term and Extended Option Term are sometimes herein collectively 

referred to as the “Option Term.” 

 

5. Due Diligence Review.  Buyer and its agents shall have the right to enter the Premises at 

reasonable times to survey and inspect the Premises, as Buyer may deem necessary or advisable to 

determine the suitability of the Premises for Buyer’s intended purposes.  During the Option Term, 

Buyer shall be entitled to conduct the following: 
 

6.12



 

#3586069v1 

 (a) Title Examination.  Buyer shall be responsible for selecting the Escrow Agent, 

conducting and paying for any examination of the title to the Premises, as Buyer deems appropriate. 
 

 i. Upon execution of this Option, Seller agrees to provide Buyer with copies of 

any existing abstracts of title, title commitments, or title insurance policies Seller may have 

relating to the Premises. If the Premises is subject to a Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Lease or 

Easement for the generation of solar or wind energy, Seller shall advise Buyer of the 

encumbrance and cooperate in obtaining a Release or Partial Release of the Premises 

from the Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Lease or Easement. 
 

 ii. If Buyer determines that title to the Premises is not marketable or it contains 

encumbrances which are not acceptable to Buyer, then Buyer shall notify Seller within the 

Option Term specifying the title issue(s) to which Buyer objects. 
 

 iii. If Buyer gives Seller such notice of objections, then Seller shall have a period 

of sixty (60) days to correct such issue(s) to Buyer’s satisfaction. 
 

 iv. In the event Seller fails or refuses to correct such issue(s) to Buyer’s satisfaction, 

Buyer, in its sole discretion, may terminate this Option.  In the event Buyer elects to terminate 

this Option, Buyer shall be entitled to receive a prompt refund of the Deposit. 
 

 v. If Buyer fails to notify Seller within the Option Term of any objections to title, 

then Buyer shall be deemed to have waived any objections and to accept title to the Premises. 
 

 (b) Environmental, Surveys & Tests.  During the Option Term, Buyer and Buyer’s agents 

shall have the right to enter upon the Premises to make and conduct such environmental assessments, 

site surveys, inspections and other engineering and environmental tests on the Premises as Buyer deems 

necessary, including without limitation, the right to make land and topographical surveys, core 

drillings, soil and water tests, engineering tests, and communications studies. 
 

 i. The cost of such assessments, surveys, inspections and tests shall be borne solely 

by Buyer. 
 

 ii. Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and all loss, 

liability, claims and expense (including reasonable attorney’s fees) arising out of the acts of 

Buyer or its designees on the Premises, except for matters relating to any pre-existing condition 

on the Premises. 
 

 iii. If Buyer, in its sole discretion, determines that the Premises are not suited to use 

for Buyer’s purposes, then Buyer may terminate this Option.  In the event Buyer elects to 

terminate this Option, Buyer shall be entitled to receive a prompt refund of the Deposit. 
 

iv. If Buyer does not purchase the Premises, Buyer shall, at its election, either repair 

any physical damage caused by such surveys and tests, or pay to Seller the amount of said 

damage. 
 

 (c) Governmental Approvals.  In the event Buyer determines that it must secure a zoning 

change or other governmental or regulatory approval to use the Premises for Buyer’s intended purpose, 

Seller agrees to cooperate with Buyer in obtaining such approval, as required. 
 

6.13



 

#3586069v1 

i. Buyer will prepare, at Buyer’s expense, any required governmental application for 

Seller’s signature, if required. Buyer will submit the application to the applicable authority and 

pay any submittal or application fees. 
 

ii. Seller agrees to attend, with Buyer, if requested, any hearings related to the 

application/request. 
 

iii. In the event the governmental application process is not completed to Buyer’s 

satisfaction prior to Closing, the closing on the Premises will be extended for a reasonable 

period of time until application for the Premises is approved. 
 

iv. In the event Buyer cannot obtain a required approval of the Premises in a timely manner, 

or on terms that are reasonably acceptable to Buyer, Buyer may, in its sole discretion, elect to 

terminate this Option, and Buyer shall be entitled to a prompt refund of the Deposit. 

 

6. Default.  If this Option is terminated or canceled pursuant to Paragraph 5, Due Diligence 

Review, or Paragraph 13, Risk of Loss, hereof this transaction shall be null and void, and the Deposit 

shall be refunded promptly and all parties shall be relieved from any further obligation hereunder.  If 

Buyer fails to exercise or close for any reason other than those provided for under Paragraph 5 or 13 

hereof, then Seller shall be entitled to retain the Deposit.  If this Option is terminated by Buyer, for any 

reason, Buyer shall forfeit the Option Fee, and Seller shall accept the Option Fee as liquidated damages, 

thereby releasing both parties from any further obligation under this Option.  Seller and Buyer have 

made this provision for liquidated damages because it would be difficult to calculate the amount of 

actual damages for such default and Seller and Buyer agree that said amount represents reasonable 

compensation to Seller for such default. 

 

7. Exercise of Option.  On or before the expiration of the Option Term, Buyer shall exercise this 

Option by (i) providing written notice to Seller or (ii) instructing the Escrow Agent to contact Seller to 

schedule the Closing, in either case using the information provided in Paragraph 19, Notice hereof. 

 

8. Conveyance.  Good and marketable title to the Premises shall be conveyed by Seller to Buyer 

at closing by General Warranty Deed (the “Deed”), in fee simple, free and clear and unencumbered, 

subject only to such easements, conditions, and restrictions of record as of the date this Option is 

executed as may be reasonably acceptable to Buyer; zoning and other governmental regulations, 

restrictions; and non-delinquent real estate taxes and assessments.  Seller agrees to execute customary 

closing affidavits and documents and provide all necessary information as required by the Escrow 

Agent for the closing of this transaction and that will enable the Escrow Agent to delete the standard 

exceptions to title from the Title Commitment. 

 

9. Closing.  The date for delivery of the Deed and the closing of this transaction shall be tentatively 

set within thirty (30) days from the date of exercise of this Option by Buyer; or at such other date as 

may be agreed upon in writing by the parties (the “Closing”).  The Closing shall be held at a place 

mutually agreeable to the parties. 

 

10. Possession.  Seller shall deliver possession and occupancy of the Premises to Buyer at Closing; 

provided however, the parties intend to enter into a Right of Entry Agreement on mutually agreeable 

6.14



#3586069v1 

terms to allow Buyer to undertake certain activities on the Premises, including grading and clearing 

prior to Closing. 

11. Taxes, Assessments and Closing Costs.  Seller shall pay or credit to the Purchase Price all

delinquent taxes, including penalties and interest, and all assessments and liens on the Premises or

Seller, on or before Closing.  Seller shall also be responsible for all unpaid real estate taxes not yet due

for years prior to Closing and a portion of such taxes for year of Closing prorated through date of

Closing.  Such Taxes shall be based on a 365 day year and, if undetermined, on most recently available

tax rate and valuation.  Buyer will be responsible for a title commitment, title insurance, environmental

assessment and survey costs as set forth in Paragraph 5 above, and all other closing costs shall be split

as is customary for the state where the Premises is located.  Buyer will prepare the Deed at its expense.

Buyer will not be responsible for payment of Seller’s attorney’s fees, if any.

12. Environmental.  Seller represents to Buyer that, to the best of Seller’s knowledge, information

and belief that: (a) the Premises does not contain, and at no time has contained, any underground storage

tanks; (b) no hazardous substances have been generated, treated, stored, transferred from, released or

disposed of, or otherwise placed, deposited in, or located on the Premises in violation of any

environmental laws, nor has any activity been undertaken on the Premises that would cause or

contribute to the Premises becoming a treatment, storage or disposal facility within the meaning of any

environmental law; (c) no part of the Premises is presently being used, nor at any time in the past has

been used as a dump or other waste disposal site or for the purpose of holding or storing hazardous

substances; and (d) there are no hazardous wastes or deposits stored or buried thereon or therein.  Buyer

acknowledges that Buyer will conduct or has conducted its own inspection of the Premises and is

relying solely upon such inspection to determine the condition of the Premises. The Premises shall be

delivered at Closing in substantially the same condition as it was as of the Effective Date of this Option.

13. Risk of Loss.  Risk of loss to the Premises from fire or other casualty (to the extent the Premises

is not vacant land) or from condemnation shall be borne by Seller until the Closing.  If the Premises is

damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty and not repaired and restored by Seller to as good as

condition as it was prior to such casualty (to the extent the Premises is not vacant land), or if a portion

of the Premises are taken through condemnation proceedings or are transferred voluntarily in lieu

thereof, Buyer may cancel this Option, or notify Seller that Buyer will elect to proceed to purchase the

Premises if Seller and Buyer can agree upon an acceptable adjustment of the Purchase Price to reflect

the damage incurred.

14. Escrow.  Buyer and Seller hereby agree that:

(a) The terms contained in Paragraph 6, Default of this Option shall govern the actions of

the Escrow Agent and the disposition of the funds held in escrow. 

(b) The Escrow Agent shall incur no liability whatsoever in connection with its good faith

performance hereunder. Escrow Agent shall be liable only for loss or damage caused directly by its 

acts of negligence or intentional misconduct. 

(c) In the event of any disagreement or dispute between the parties as to the terms of escrow,

the Escrow Agent may refuse to comply with said instructions and/or claims until: (i) the dispute has 

6.15



 

#3586069v1 

been settled between the parties and joint, written instructions are delivered to Escrow Agent by the 

parties, or (ii) the dispute has been settled by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

15. Time of the Essence.  Time is expressly declared to be of the essence in this transaction, unless 

the parties otherwise agree in writing. 

 

16. Entire Agreement.  The parties acknowledge and agree that this Option constitutes their entire 

agreement and that no oral or implied agreement exists.  

 

17. Survival of Representations and Warranties.  This Option shall be binding upon the parties and 

their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, and the covenants contained herein 

shall survive the Closing of this transaction. 

 

18. Broker’s Fees or Commissions.  Each party represents that no real estate broker, consultant, 

finder or like agent has an interest in this transaction.  Each party shall indemnify and hold the other 

harmless from and against any and all claims whatsoever arising out of any claim by any broker, 

consultant, finder or like agent with whom the indemnifying party has dealt or negotiated. 

 

19. Notice.  All notices, elections or other communications authorized, required or permitted 

hereunder shall be made in writing and shall be deemed given when: personally delivered; or when 

deposited, U.S. certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; sent by overnight mail; or sent 

via email to the following:  

 

To Buyer:        Public Service Company of Oklahoma 

Attn: Real Estate Asset Management 

1 Riverside Plaza, 16th Floor 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 -2373 

Phone: (614) 716-6837 

Email: realestateassetmanagement@aep.com  

 

With copy to:   Public Service Company of Oklahoma 

Kyle Greenhaw 

212 E 6th Street 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119 

Phone: (918) 282-2177 

E-mail: kgreenhaw@aep.com  

 

To Seller:   Michael P. Eaton 

2459 N. Mingo Road 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74117 

Phone: (580) 880-4389 

E-mail: eatonindustrial1@gmail.com 

 

20. Governing Law.  This Option shall be governed by the law of the state where the Premises is 

located. 

 

6.16

mailto:realestateassetmanagement@aep.com
mailto:eatonindustrial1@gmail.com


#3586069v1 

21. Authority.  The parties herein warrant to each other that they have full capacity, power and

authority to enter into and perform this Option according to its terms.

22. Confidentiality.  For a period of twenty-four (24) months after the Effective Date of this Option,

Buyer and Seller agree that this Option and its contents, including the amount of the Purchase Price,

shall remain confidential and shall not be disclosed to any third party, without the prior written consent

of the other party, except to (i) attorneys, accountants, financial advisors, tax professionals and/or other

representatives retained by and working for party who have a legitimate need to know such information;

(ii) a federal, state, or local governmental taxing or regulatory authority having jurisdiction; (iii) a

party’s management, officers, Board of Directors or affiliated companies; and/or (iv) as required by

law or court order.

6.17



 

#3586069v1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Option has been executed by the parties hereto as of the dates 

written below, to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

Seller 

 

 

 

By:        

Michael P. Eaton, an unmarried individual 

 

Date:         

 

 

 

Buyer  

 

Public Service Company of Oklahoma, 

an Oklahoma corporation 

 

 

 

By:        

Leigh Anne Strahler 

President 

 

Date:         

 

 

  

6.18



 

#3586069v1 

Exhibit A 

 

Description and/or Depiction of the Premises 

 

 

A tract of land lying in and being a part of Lot Two (2), Block One (1), Don Eaton Addition, a 

Subdivision in the City and County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof, 

said tract of land being described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Lot 2; Thence North 89°45’16” West, along the South 

line of said Lot 2, a distance of 209.00 feet to the point of beginning; Thence continuing North 

89°45’16” West, along said South line, a distance of 130.00 feet; Thence North 00°08’15” East a 

distance of 485.89 feet; Thence South 89°45’16” East a distance of 130.00 feet; Thence South 

00°08’15” West a distance of 485.89 feet to the point of beginning.  Containing 1.45 acres, more or 

less. 

 

6.19



Δ=

30'15' 0'30'

LEGEND

BASELINE B

BA
SE

LI
N

E 
A

SUBSTATION PAD

DRIVE "A"

KEYNOTES

DRIVE "B"

N
. M

IN
G

O
 R

D
.

DETENTION POND

CM 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 4 8 12 16 TENTHS 10 20 30 INCHES 1 2 33
16 INCH

DWG.
NO.

DATE:APPD:WO#:
DWG.
NO.

SCALE: DR: ENG:

R
E
V

CH:

AIR GUARD SUBSTATION
TULSA COUNTY OKLAHOMA

J. CAIN
T10702801

J. CAINSEE PLAN

PL
O

TT
ED

ST
AT

IO
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
TS

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

AE
P 

G
 (3

0 
X 

46
)

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

 P
ER

M
IT

 1
0/

30
/2

02
5

M. LEONHARD

4:
51

:0
0 

PM
30

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

5

R

ADDRESS:
PROJECT#:

ATLAS PG: 174

#
4950 N MINGO RD. TULSA, OK 74117

IDP
SHT #

DIMENSIONAL CONTROL & KEYNOTE PLAN

CU-SL01-S03
CU-SL01-S03

2

GE04

6.20



Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

LDF Park - Accelerated Release of a Building Permit 

Hearing Date: February 4, 2026 
Prepared by: Austin Chapman  

achapman@cityoftulsa.org 
918-596-7597

Owner and Applicant Information 
Applicant: Wallace Design Collective  

Property Owner: IDO Land Holdings LLC 

Property Location 
Southeast corner of the intersection of East Admiral 
Place and Interstate 44 

Location within the City of Tulsa 
(shown with City Council districts) 

Request Summary 
Applicant is requesting authorization for an Authorization 
for the accelerated release of a building permit prior to the 
filing of the final plat for the LDF subdivision plat. Public 
infrastructure will be guaranteed with a letter of credit as 
required by the Subdivision & Development Regulations. 
Preliminary plat was approved by TMAPC on 02/05/25 

Tract Size: ± 78.6 acres 

Zoning 
Existing Zoning: CG 
Existing Overlays: None 
Use 
Current Use: Vacant 

Scope of Infrastructure to serve subdivision: 
Infrastructure requirements are designed under IDP permit 
223007-2025; third review comments returned to applicant 
on 01/12/2026. This IDP must be approved prior to plat 
release. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval to  authorize the accelerated 
release of a building permit prior to the required subdivision 
plat being filed, subject to the conditions of the Subdivision 
and Development Regulations, finding that the application 
meets the criteria found in Sec. 10-110.6. A-B-and C of the 
Subdivision and Development Regulations.  Release limited 
to the improvements shown in the attached conceptual 
improvement plan.  

Exhibits 
Case map 
Aerial 
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 

Elected Representatives 
City Council: District 3, Jackie Dutton 
County Commission: District 1, Stan Sallee 

Public Notice Required 
None. 

7.1



7.2



7.3



7.4



60' ACCESS ESMT.
(BK. 7040, PG. 480)

17.5 U/E (BK.
7040, PG. 480)

SIGN ESMT.
(BK. 6498, PG. 1317)

SEWER ESMT. TO CITY OF
TULSA (BK. 4359, PG. 910)
DOC. #714146

70' PRIVATE
DRIVEWAY ESMT.
DOC. #2012085673

40' PRIVATE DRIVEWAY
ESMT. DOC. #2012085673

ESMT. TO TULSA CO. (BK. 2741,
PG. 189) CORRECTION EASEMENT

(BK. 2782, PG. 160; PARTIAL
RELEASE (BK. 5700, PG. 1434)

100' DRAINAGE ESMT.
DOC. #2012085673

30' UTILITY ESMT.
DOC. #2012085673

100' VEGETATION
NON-DISTURBANCE
AREA EASEMENT

EXISTING OD/E &
STORMWATER
DETENTION
EASEMENT
(SEE NOTE 1)

EASEMENT TO TULSA COUNTY
DOC. #150498 (BK. 2397, PG. 370)

EASEMENT TO TULSA
COUNTY (BK. 2397, PG. 370)

REPORT OF COMMISSIONERS
TULSA CO, DISTRICT COURT

(DOC. #804486, BK. 5184, PG. 1855)
SAID DOCUMENTS CREATE

LIMITS OF ACCESS

Cooley Creek

Center I

1

2

3

R=2168.67'

CD=1091.95'

CB=N74°09'10"E

Δ=29°09'46"

L=1103.82

70.00'N 88°44'04" E
76.18'

30' SEWER EASEMENT TO
CITY OF TULSA (BK. 4356,

PG. 910) DOC. #714146

30' SEWER ESMT.
TO CITY OF TULSA
DOC. #2005101633

10

11

9 4 3 2 1 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

16

P.O.C.
FOUND BRASS CAP

SW CORNER S/2
NW/4, SECTION 4

E. 4th St. S.
FOUND 1/2"

IRON PIN

70' PRIVATE DRIVEWAY
ESMT. DOC. #2012085673

WATER ESMT. TO
CITY OF TULSA

DOC. #2005101635

25
' B

/L
17

.5
0'

 U
/E

25' B/L
17.50' U/E

50
' B

/L

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

50
' B

/L

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

M
A/

E

ROADWAY ESMT. TO CITY OF
TULSA (BK. 6537, PG. 1055)
DOC. #01060616

S.
 1

30
th

 E
. A

ve
.

S.
 1

29
th

 E
. A

ve
.

25
' B

/L 10' B/L

40
'

40
'

5'
 U

/E

5'
 U

/E

5'
 U

/E

5'
 U

/E

25' B/L

10
' B

/L

10
' B

/L

13
2n

d 
E.

 A
ve

.

10
' B

/L

13
5t

h 
E.

 A
ve

.

10
' B

/L

13
7t

h 
E.

 A
ve

.

25' B/L

5' U/E

5' U/E

10
' B

/L

S. LINE NW4 SEC. 4
N. LINE NW4 SEC. 4

Al
be

rts
on

s 
Tu

ls
a

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n

75
' B

/L

17
.5

0'
 U

/E
75

' B
/L

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

50' B/L

17.50' U/E

S. LINE GOVT. LOT 2
N. LINE GOVT. LOT 7

11

123

1
75' B/L

17.50' U/E

GOVT. LOT 6

NORTH LINE S/2 NW/4

GOVT. LOT 5

13412
1

1
51

0.
45

'
N

 0
1°

22
'4

4"
 W

SET 3/8"
IRON PIN

94.31'
S 88°37'16" W

63.48'

N 49°00'05" W

55.52'
N 32°21'33" W

R=1
10

6.2
3'

CD=2
60

.77
'

CB=N
47

°31
'11

"E

Δ=1
3°3

2'1
6"

L=
26

1.3
8

SO
UT

HE
RL

Y
R/

W
 - 

I-4
4

FOUND 3/8"
IRON PIN

23.42'
S 88°44'04" W

N 88°44'04" E
637.93'

N
 0

1°
25

'0
7"

 W
50

1.
81

'

75
' B

/L

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

17.50' U/E

N 88°44'04" E
70.00'

FOUND 3/8"
IRON PIN

SET 3/8"
IRON PIN

S. R/W - E. ADMIRAL PL. 637.93'

15
0'

FOUND 3/8"
IRON PIN

FOUND 1/2"
IRON PIN

S 
01

°2
5'

07
" E

88
2.

00
'

SET 3/8"
IRON PIN

Meadowbrook
Heights

EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
N

W
/4

 - 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 4
W

ES
T 

LI
N

E 
N

E/
4 

- S
EC

TI
O

N
 4

17.50' U/E

17.50' U/E

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

REGULATORY
FLOODPLAIN (INSIDE
100-YR FLOOD)

REGULATORY
FLOODPLAIN ZONE
AE (INSIDE 100-YR

FLOOD)

REGULATORY
FLOODPLAIN ZONE
AE (INSIDE 100-YR

FLOOD)

L=
31

4.
17

'
R=

30
0.

00
'

CD
=3

00
.0

1'

CB
=N

 2
8°

37
'21

" E

Δ=
60

°0
0'1

0"

S LINE GOVT. LOT 7
N. LINE S/2 NE/4

20' SEWER ESMT.
TO CITY OF TULSA
DOC. #2005101633

SOUTH LINE GOV. LOT 6EA
ST

 L
IN

E 
G

O
V.

 L
O

T 
5

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

G
O

V.
 L

O
T 

6

SOUTH LINE GOV. LOT 5

10' B/L

10
' B

/L

SOUTH LINE GOV. LOT 3
NORTH LINE GOV. LOT 6

N. LINE GOVT. LOT 5
S. LINE GOVT. LOT 4

N 23°45'43" W
201.90'

N 42°27'31" W

122.71'

N 81°11'52" W
331.87'

S 88°44'04" W
707.93'

L=498.77'
R=1106.23'
CD=494.55'

CB=N 27°50'04" E
Δ=25°49'59"

BENCHMARK

E. Admiral Pl.
N 88°44'04" E

70' ACC
EX

. 4
12

.6
7'

 A
C

C

24.75'
STATUTORY

R/W

70' R/W
DEDICATION
PER PLAT

FRESHWATER
FORESTED/SHRUB

WETLAND

FEMA ZONE
AE (INSIDE

100-YR FLOOD)

FEMA FLOODWAY
(INSIDE 100-YR

FLOOD)

S.
 1

37
th

 E
. A

ve
.

(P
ub

lic
)

50' ACC

S 
01

°2
5'

07
" E

50
1.

81
'

20' SS/E

17
.5

0'
 U

/E

EX. LNA
(DOC. #804486, BK. 5184, PG. 1855)

EX. 891.29' ACC
(DOC. #804486, BK. 5184, PG. 1855)

EX. L
NA

(D
OC. #

80
44

86
, B

K. 5
18

4, 
PG. 1

85
5)

EX
. L

N
A

(D
O

C
. #

80
44

86
, B

K.
 5

18
4,

 P
G

. 1
85

5)
(D

O
C

. #
80

44
86

, B
K.

 5
18

4,
 P

G
. 1

85
5)

10
8.

24
'

N 
29

°4
9'4

6"
 E

N 88°32'32" E
355.79'

EAST 4TH STREET SOUTH
RE-OPENED BY ORDINANCE

#20136 (BK.6542, PG.210)

P.O.B.

S 87°31'22" W
52.29'

90.59'

S 64°08'13" W101.60'

S 87°40'07" W
107.08'N 71°25'00" W

114.76'

N
 1

0°
53

'3
9"

 W

92
.4

0'
92.37'

100.45'

N 38°20'22" W

88.94'

N 22°35'54" E

17.50' U/E

15' SEWER EASEMENT TO CITY
OF TULSA (BK. 6532, PG. 298)
DOC. NO. 01056926

15' SEWER EASEMENT TO CITY
OF TULSA (BK. 6532, PG. 298)
DOC. #01056926

25' ESMT. TO SYSTEM CAPITAL REAL
PROPERTY CORPORATION (BK. 6940,
PG. 1855) DOC. #03023686 & (BK.
7235, PG. 2070) DOC. #04019460

Unplatted

11Inland Truck Parts

EAST 4TH STREET
(CLOSED BY ORDINANCE
#18546 BK.5748 PG.492)

S 73°51'02" W

N 74°56'08" W 11

17
.50

' U
/E

N 77°04'09" W

51.61'

Unplatted

11Inland Truck Parts

S. LINE INLAND
TRUCK PARTS

20' SS/E (BY
SEP. INST)

DETENTION
EASEMENT

L4

L5 L6

L7
L8

L9

L10

L1
1

L12 L13

10
7.

07
'

17.50' U/E

SS/E PER THIS PLAT
(WIDTH VARIES)

578.76'

S 41
°4

0'1
7" 

W

17
8.8

4'

S 68°13'59" W81.19'

15' SS/E (BY
SEP. INST)

70' R/W
DEDICATION
PER PLAT

38
0.

19
'

70'

70.00'

L3

637.93'

SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT PER
DOC#2025029603

L1

L2

66.77'

17.50' U/E

EXISTING 17.50' U/E
TO REMAIN

20' RWL/E (BY
SEP. INST.)

LINE TABLE

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

LENGTH

15.41'

177.96'

184.87'

47.19'

20.00'

38.35'

41.76'

124.96'

36.44'

6.03'

140.93'

40.86'

372.51'

BEARING

N 88°44'04" E

S 02°24'51" E

S 03°10'32" E

N 01°05'21" W

N 88°54'39" E

S 01°05'21" E

N 77°00'41" E

N 88°43'59" E

S 01°15'56" E

S 07°38'30" E

S 01°15'56" E

S 57°04'41" E

N 88°44'04" E

DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1

LDF PARK-PHASE I
120 180 2400

1" = 120'

A RESUBDIVISION OF PART OF LOT ONE (1), BLOCK ONE (1), INLAND TRUCK PARTS, AND A TRACT OF LAND THAT IS A PART
OF GOVERNMENT LOTS FIVE (5) AND SIX (6) AND PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2 NW/4) OF
SECTION FOUR (4), TOWNSHIP NINETEEN (19) NORTH, RANGE FOURTEEN (14) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN,

CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

Wallace Design Collective, PC
123 North Martin Luther King Jr Blvd.

Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74103
Phone: (918) 584-5858

OK CA NO. 1460, EXPIRES 6/30/2027

IDO Land Holdings LLC
111 South Elgin Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74102

CONTACT: MATT KLIMISH

SCOTT RODEHAVER, P.E.
scottrodehaver@wallace.design

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:

OWNER:

R. WESLEY BENNETT, PLS 1562
wes.bennett@wallace.design

1

LEGEND
B/L
ACC
EX.
LNA
R/W
U/E
ESMT.
BK./PG.
P.O.B.
P.O.C.

               PARTIAL EASEMENT CLOSURE AREA (SEE NOTE 1)

               ADDRESS

   BLOCK NUMBER

   LOT NUMBER

   MONUMENT SET
   MONUMENT FOUND

13412

1
1

SUBDIVISION STATISTICS
SUBDIVISION CONTAINS ONE (1) LOT IN ONE (1) BLOCK.
SUBDIVISION CONTAINS 1,277,651 SF SF (29.33 ACRES)
LOT 1 CONTAINS 1,215,911 SF (27.91 ACRES ACRES)
R/W DEDICATED BY PLAT CONTAINS 61,740 SF (1.42 ACRES)

PROPERTY ZONED CG/IL/RMH

MONUMENTATION
MONUMENTATION FOUND AS NOTED.
3/8" IRON PINS TO BE SET AT ALL PROPERTY CORNERS.
1/2" IRON PINS TO BE SET AT MAIN EXTERIOR CORNERS.

BENCHMARK
CHISELED SQUARE ON TOP OF CURB IN E. ADMIRAL PL. R/W
NORTHING=429634.2460
EASTING=2609436.3000
ELEV=707.38

SURVEYOR'S LAST SITE VISIT:
6/9/23

BASIS OF BEARINGS
HORIZONTAL DATUM BASED UPON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM NAD 83 (2011) NORTH ZONE 3501.
VERTICAL DATUM NAVD 1988

ADDRESS NOTE
ADDRESSES SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WERE ACCURATE AT THE
TIME THIS PLAT WAS FILED. ADDRESSES ARE SUBJECT TO
CHANGE AND SHOULD NEVER BE RELIED ON IN PLACE OF
LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

FLOODPLAIN NOTE
WE HAVE EXAMINED A MAP BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, TULSA
COUNTY, OKLAHOMA AND INCORPORATED AREAS, MAP NO'S.
40143C0262L & 40143C0264L, MAPS REVISED: OCTOBER 16,
2012, WHICH SHOWS THE ENTIRE PORTION OF THE PROPERTY
DESCRIBED HEREON AS LOCATED IN ZONES (X)(SHADED)
WHICH IS CLASSIFIED AS AREAS OF 500-YEAR FLOOD; AREAS
OF 100-YEAR FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1
FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS OF LESS THAN 1 SQUARE
MILE; AND AREAS PROTECTED FROM 100-YEAR FLOOD BY
LEVEES AND (X)(UNSHADED) WHICH IS CLASSIFIED AS AREAS
DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN.

=  BUILDING SETBACK
=  ACCESS
=  EXISTING
=  LIMITS OF NO ACCESS
=  RIGHT-OF-WAY
=  UTILITY EASEMENT
=  EASEMENT
=  BOOK/PAGE
=  POINT OF BEGINNING
=  POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

DATE: 11/10/2025
LDF PARK-PHASE I

DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1
SHEET    OF 3

\\c
iv

il-
se

rv
er

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
24

40
35

8 
LD

F 
Si

te
 D

es
ig

n\
04

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

01
 D

es
ig

n 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\0
5 

Pl
at

\2
44

03
58

 D
ra

ft 
Fi

na
l P

la
t-P

h 
I.d

w
g

PL
O

T:
11

/1
0/

25
O

R
IG

 S
IZ

E:
24

"X
36

"

FINAL PLAT
ENDORSEMENT OF APPROVAL

TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION
APPROVAL DATE ________________________________

________________________________________________
TMAPC

________________________________________________
CITY ENGINEER

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TULSA OKLAHOMA
APPROVAL DATE ________________________________

________________________________________________
CHAIR

________________________________________________
MAYOR

________________________________________________
ATTEST: CITY CLERK

________________________________________________
CITY ATTORNEY

THE APPROVAL OF THIS FINAL PLAT WILL EXPIRE ONE
YEAR FROM THIS DATE OF CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL
IF NOT FILED  IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK
BEFORE THAT DATE.

FLYING J
TRAVEL PLAZA

4 19

14

(I-44) SKELLY DRIVE

EAST 11TH STREET

12
9T

H
 E

AS
T 

AV
EN

U
E

14
5T

H
 E

AS
T 

AV
EN

U
E

E

Location Map

R

T

N

SCALE: 1"=2000'

E. 7TH STREET S.

E. 4TH STREET S.

E. ADMIRAL PL.

(I-4
4) SKELLY DRIVE UNPC. EMIT

WILSON

ALBERTSON'S TULSA

DISTRIBUTION

HEIGHTS
MEADOW BROOK

UNP

UNP

UNP

AC
R

ES
G

O
LD

EN

AC
R

ES
 2

N
D

11
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

(I-244) EXPRESSWAY/

SITE

BELGRAY

COOLEY CREEK
CENTER I

HICKORY
HOLLOW PATIO
HOMES RESUB APAC 11TH

STREET FACILITY

RESTORATION
CHURCH

UNP

UNP

INLAND
TRUCK PARTS

NOTE:
1.  OD/E & STORMWATER DETENTION EASEMENT PER INLAND

TRUCK PARTS PLAT (TO BE PARTIALLY CLOSED & VACATED)

7.5



DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1

LDF PARK-PHASE I

2

DEED OF DEDICATION AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

LDF PROPERTIES OF OKLAHOMA LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ("LDF"), IS THE OWNER OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
LAND IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT:

TRACT A LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN PART OF LOT ONE (1), BLOCK ONE (1), INLAND TRUCK PARTS, AND A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS FIVE (5), AND
SIX (6), AND PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2 NW/4) OF SECTION FOUR (4), TOWNSHIP NINETEEN (19) NORTH,
RANGE FOURTEEN (14) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO
THE U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2, NW/4) OF SAID SECTION FOUR (4);
THENCE N88°32'32”E AND ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID S/2 NW/4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 355.79 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A
NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE PRESENT EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SOUTH 130TH EAST AVENUE, ALSO BEING
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF COOLEY CREEK CENTER I, PLAT NO. 5541 TO THE CITY OF TULSA, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID
RIGHT-OF-WAY CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 60°00'10", HAVING A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, A LENGTH OF 314.17 FEET
AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N28°37'21"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 300.01 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A TANGENT LINE;
THENCE N01°22'44”W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 510.45 FEET; THENCE S88°37'16”W FOR A DISTANCE
OF 94.31 FEET; THENCE N49°00'05”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 63.48; THENCE N32°21'33”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE NORTHERNMOST CORNER OF SAID COOLEY CREEK CENTER I; THENCE
N29°49'46”E AND LONG SAID I-44 SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 108.24 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE; THEN CONTINING
ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-O-WAY ON SAID CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 25°49'59", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1106.23 FEET,
A LENGTH OF 498.77  FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N27°50'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 494.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 13°32'16", HAVING A
RADIUS OF 1106.23 FEET, A LENGTH OF 261.38 FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N47°31'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 260.77 FEET TO A
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENTIAL LINE; THENCE S88°44'04"W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A
DISTANCE OF 23.42 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE; THENCE ALONG THE I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON SAID CURVE
TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 29°09'46", HAVING A RADIUS OF 2168.67 FEET, A LENGTH OF 1103.82 FEET AND WHOSE LONG
CHORD BEARS N74°09'10"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 1091.95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE
POINT BEING 150.00 SOUTH MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO THE CENTERLINE OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE SAID CENTERLINE ALSO
BEING THE NORTHERLY LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 6 OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE N88°44'04"E AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 76.18 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF INLAND TRUCK PARTS, PLAT NO. 6512 TO THE
CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.81 FEET;
THENCE N88°44'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 637.93 FEET TO THE EAST LINE AND TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS;
THENCE N01°25'07"W AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE; THENCE N88°44'04"E ALONG SAID SOURTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF ALBERTSONS TULSA DISTRIBUTION PLAT NO. 5335
TO THE CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID ALBERTSON TULSA DISTURBUTION PLAT ALSO BEING THE
EAST LINE OF THE NW/4 OF SECTION 4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.14 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE
S01°25'07"E AND PARALLEL TO SAID EAST LINE OF THE NW/4 OF SECTION 4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 270.86 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04"W AND
PARALLEL TO THE AFORMENTIONED CENTERLINE OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 647.93 FEET; THENCE N77°04'09"W FOR A
DISTANCE OF 51.61 FEET; THENCE N81°11'52"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 331.87 FEET; THENCE S87°31'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 52.29 FEET;
THENCE S73°51'02"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 90.59 FEET; THENCE S68°13'59"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 81.19 FEET; THENCE S41°40'17"W FOR A
DISTANCE OF 178.84 FEET; THENCE S64°08'13"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 101.60 FEET; THENCE S 87° 40' 07" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 107.08 FEET;
THENCE N71°25'00"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 114.76 FEET; THENCE N42°27'31"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 122.71 FEET; THENCE N23°45'43"W FOR A
DISTANCE OF 201.90 FEET; THENCE N10°53'39"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.40 FEET; THENCE N22°35'54"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.37 FEET;
N74°56'08"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 100.45 FEET; THENCE N38°20'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 88.94 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID TRACT CONTAINING 28.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

AND

IDO LAND HOLDINGS, LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ("IDO"), IS THE OWNER OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND IN THE
CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-WIT:

TRACT B LEGAL DESCTIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND IN GOVERNMENT LOT 6 AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4) OF SECTION FOUR (4), TOWNSHIP NINETEEN (19) NORTH,
RANGE FOURTEEN (14) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO
THE U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF GOVERNMENT LOT SIX (6); THENCE S01°25'07”E FOR A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET; THENCE
CONTINUING S01°25'07”E FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING S01°25'07”E FOR A DISTANCE
OF 270.86 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE N01°25'07”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 270.86 FEET; THENCE
N88°44'04”E FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID TRACT CONTAINING 0.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

TRACT A AND TRACT B TOGETHER CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRETY OF THE PROPERTY PLATTED,

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PLAT OVERALL LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN PART OF LOT ONE (1), BLOCK ONE (1), INLAND TRUCK PARTS, AND A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS FIVE (5), AND
SIX (6), AND PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2 NW/4) OF SECTION FOUR (4), TOWNSHIP NINETEEN (19) NORTH,
RANGE FOURTEEN (14) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO
THE U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2, NW/4) OF SAID SECTION FOUR (4);
THENCE N88°32'32”E AND ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID S/2 NW/4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 355.79 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A
NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE PRESENT EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SOUTH 130TH EAST AVENUE, ALSO BEING
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF COOLEY CREEK CENTER I, PLAT NO. 5541 TO THE CITY OF TULSA, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID
RIGHT-OF-WAY CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 60°00'10", HAVING A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, A LENGTH OF 314.17 FEET
AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N28°37'21"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 300.01 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A TANGENT LINE;
THENCE N01°22'44”W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 510.45 FEET; THENCE S88°37'16”W FOR A DISTANCE
OF 94.31 FEET; THENCE N49°00'05”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 63.48; THENCE N32°21'33”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE NORTHERNMOST CORNER OF SAID COOLEY CREEK CENTER I; THENCE
N29°49'46”E AND LONG SAID I-44 SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 108.24 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE; THEN CONTINUING
ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-O-WAY ON SAID CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 25°49'59", HAVING A RADIUS OF 1106.23 FEET,
A LENGTH OF 498.77  FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N27°50'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 494.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 13°32'16", HAVING A
RADIUS OF 1106.23 FEET, A LENGTH OF 261.38 FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N47°31'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 260.77 FEET TO A
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENTIAL LINE; THENCE S88°44'04"W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A
DISTANCE OF 23.42 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE; THENCE ALONG THE I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON SAID CURVE
TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 29°09'46", HAVING A RADIUS OF 2168.67 FEET, A LENGTH OF 1103.82 FEET AND WHOSE LONG
CHORD BEARS N74°09'10"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 1091.95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE
POINT BEING 150.00 SOUTH MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY TO THE CENTERLINE OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE SAID CENTERLINE ALSO
BEING THE NORTHERLY LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 6 OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE N88°44'04"E AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 76.18 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF INLAND TRUCK PARTS, PLAT NO. 6512 TO THE
CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.81 FEET;
THENCE N88°44'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 637.93 FEET TO THE EAST LINE AND TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS;
THENCE N01°25'07"W AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE; THENCE N88°44'04"E ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF ALBERTSONS TULSA DISTRIBUTION PLAT NO. 5335
TO THE CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID ALBERTSON TULSA DISTRIBUTION PLAT ALSO BEING THE
EAST LINE OF THE NW/4 OF SECTION 4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 882.00 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 707.93 FEET; THENCE
N77°04'09"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 51.61 FEET; THENCE N81°11'52"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 331.87 FEET; THENCE S87°31'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF
52.29 FEET; THENCE S73°51'02"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 90.59 FEET; THENCE S68°13'59"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 81.19 FEET; THENCE S41°40'17"W
FOR A DISTANCE OF 178.84 FEET; THENCE S64°08'13"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 101.60 FEET; THENCE S 87° 40' 07" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 107.08
FEET; THENCE N71°25'00"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 114.76 FEET; THENCE N42°27'31"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 122.71 FEET; THENCE N23°45'43"W FOR
A DISTANCE OF 201.90 FEET; THENCE N10°53'39"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.40 FEET; THENCE N22°35'54"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.37 FEET;
N74°56'08"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 100.45 FEET; THENCE N38°20'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 88.94 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID TRACT CONTAINING 29.33 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

TRACT A AND TRACT B TOGETHER CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRETY OF THE PROPERTY PLATTED HEREBY. LDF AND IDO ARE HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TO AS THE "OWNERS". THE OWNERS HAVE CAUSED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND TO BE SURVEYED, STAKED, PLATTED
AND SUBDIVIDED INTO 1 LOT AND 1 BLOCK (HEREIN AFTER THE “LOT”) IN CONFORMITY WITH THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, AND HAS
DESIGNATED THE SUBDIVISION AS “LDF PARK-PHASE I” A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA (HEREINAFTER THE
“SUBDIVISION”).

SECTION I. STREETS, EASEMENTS AND UTILITIES

A. PUBLIC STREETS AND GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENTS

THE OWNER DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY AS DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT.
ADDITIONALLY, THE OWNER DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE UTILITY EASEMENTS DESIGNATED AS “U/E” OR “UTILITY
EASEMENT”, FOR THE SEVERAL PURPOSES OF CONSTRUCTING, MAINTAINING, OPERATING, REPAIRING, REPLACING, AND/OR REMOVING
ANY AND ALL PUBLIC UTILITIES, INCLUDING STORM SEWERS, SANITARY SEWERS, TELEPHONE AND COMMUNICATION LINES, ELECTRIC
POWER LINES AND TRANSFORMERS, GAS LINES, WATER LINES AND CABLE TELEVISION LINES, TOGETHER WITH ALL FITTINGS, INCLUDING
THE POLES, WIRES, CONDUITS, PIPES, VALVES, METERS, MANHOLES, AND EQUIPMENT FOR EACH OF SUCH FACILITIES AND ANY OTHER
APPURTENANCES THERETO, WITH THE RIGHTS OF INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND UPON THE UTILITY EASEMENTS FOR THE USES AND
PURPOSES AFORESAID, PROVIDED HOWEVER, THE OWNER HEREBY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, LAY
AND REPAIR OR RE-LAY WATER LINES AND SEWER LINES, TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT OF INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR SUCH
CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OPERATION, LAYING, REPAIRING AND RELAYING OVER, ACROSS AND ALONG ALL OF THE UTILITY
EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON THE PLAT, FOR THE PURPOSE OF FURNISHING WATER AND/ OR SEWER SERVICES TO THE AREA INCLUDED IN
THE PLAT. THE OWNER HEREIN IMPOSES A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT, WHICH COVENANT SHALL BE BINDING ON THE OWNER AND ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS (TOGETHER, THE “LOT OWNER”), AND SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, AND BY
THE SUPPLIER OF ANY AFFECTED UTILITY SERVICE, THAT WITHIN THE UTILITY EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT NO
BUILDING, STRUCTURE OR OTHER ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND OBSTRUCTION THAT INTERFERES WITH THE ABOVE SET FORTH USES AND
PURPOSES OF AN EASEMENT SHALL BE PLACED, ERECTED, INSTALLED OR MAINTAINED, PROVIDED HOWEVER, NOTHING HEREIN SHALL
BE DEEMED TO PROHIBIT DRIVES, PARKING AREAS, CURBING, LANDSCAPING AND CUSTOMARY SCREENING FENCES THAT DO NOT
CONSTITUTE AN OBSTRUCTION.

B. UTILITY SERVICE

1.  OVERHEAD LINES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, AND CABLE TELEVISION SERVICE MAY BE LOCATED IN THE PERIMETER
UTILITY EASEMENTS AND THE IN THE PERIMETER RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE SUBDIVISION. STREET LIGHT POLES OR STANDARDS MAY BE
SERVED BY OVERHEAD OR UNDERGROUND CABLE, AND ELSEWHERE THROUGHOUT THE SUBDIVISION, ALL SUPPLY LINES INCLUDING
ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION AND GAS LINES SHALL BE LOCATED UNDERGROUND IN EASEMENTS DEDICATED FOR
GENERAL UTILITY SERVICES AND IN THE RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE PUBLIC STREETS AS DEPICTED UPON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT.
SERVICE PEDESTALS AND TRANSFORMERS, AS SOURCES OF SUPPLY AT SECONDARY VOLTAGES, MAY ALSO BE LOCATED IN THE
GENERAL UTILITY EASEMENTS.

2.  UNDERGROUND SERVICE CABLES AND GAS SERVICE LINES TO ALL STRUCTURES WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION MAY BE EXTENDED FROM
THE NEAREST GAS MAIN, SERVICE PEDESTAL OR TRANSFORMER TO THE POINT OF USAGE DETERMINED BY THE LOCATION AND
CONSTRUCTION OF SUCH STRUCTURE UPON THE LOT, PROVIDED UPON INSTALLATION OF A SERVICE CABLE OR GAS SERVICE LINE TO
A PARTICULAR STRUCTURE, THE SUPPLIER OF SERVICE SHALL THEREAFTER BE DEEMED TO HAVE A DEFINITIVE, PERMANENT AND
NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT ON THE LOT, COVERING A 5 FOOT STRIP EXTENDING 2.5 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE SERVICE CABLE OR
LINE EXTENDING FROM THE GAS MAIN, SERVICE PEDESTAL OR TRANSFORMER TO THE SERVICE ENTRANCE ON THE STRUCTURE.

1. THE SUPPLIER OF ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION AND GAS SERVICES, THROUGH ITS AUTHORIZED AGENTS AND
EMPLOYEES, SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OR OTHERWISE
PROVIDED FOR IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING, MAINTAINING, REMOVING OR REPLACING ANY
PORTION OF THE UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION OR GAS SERVICE FACILITIES INSTALLED BY THE
SUPPLIER OF THE UTILITY SERVICE.

2. THE LOT OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE OVERHEAD AND/OR UNDERGROUND SERVICE FACILITIES
LOCATED ON THE LOT AND SHALL PREVENT THE ALTERATION OF GRADE OR ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHICH MAY INTERFERE
WITH SAID ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION OR GAS FACILITIES.  EACH SUPPLIER OF THESE SERVICES SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ORDINARY MAINTENANCE OF OVERHEAD AND/OR UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, BUT THE LOT OWNER SHALL PAY FOR
DAMAGE OR RELOCATION OF SUCH FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED BY ACTS OF THE LOT OWNER OR THE LOT OWNER'S
AGENTS OR CONTRACTORS.

3. THE COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY EACH SUPPLIER OF THE ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE,
COMMUNICATION, CABLE TELEVISION OR GAS SERVICE AND THE LOT OWNER AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THESE COVENANTS.

C. WATER, SANITARY SEWER, AND STORM SEWER SERVICE

1. THE LOT OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE PUBLIC WATER MAINS, SANITARY SEWER MAINS, AND STORM
SEWERS LOCATED IN THE SUBDIVISION.

2. WITHIN THE UTILITY EASEMENTS DEPICTED ON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, THE ALTERATION OF GRADE FROM THE CONTOURS
EXISTING UPON THE COMPLETION OF THE INSTALLATION OF A PUBLIC WATER MAIN, SANITARY SEWER MAIN, OR STORM SEWER OR
ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHICH, IN THE JUDGMENT OF THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, WOULD INTERFERE WITH PUBLIC WATER
MAINS, SANITARY SEWER MAINS, AND STORM SEWERS SHALL BE PROHIBITED.

3. THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS SUCCESSORS, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ORDINARY MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC WATER
SYSTEMS, SANITARY SEWER MAINS, AND STORM SEWERS, BUT THE LOT OWNER SHALL PAY FOR DAMAGE OR RELOCATION OF SUCH
FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED BY ACTS OF THE LOT OWNER OR THE LOT OWNER'S AGENTS AND/OR CONTRACTORS.

4. THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS SUCCESSORS, SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO THE UTILITY EASEMENTS
DEPICTED ON THE PLAT OR OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING,
MAINTAINING, REMOVING OR REPLACING ANY PORTION OF UNDERGROUND WATER, SANITARY SEWER, OR STORM SEWER FACILITIES.

5. THE COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR ITS SUCCESSORS,
AND THE LOT OWNER AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THESE COVENANTS.

D.  GAS SERVICE

1. THE SUPPLIER OF GAS SERVICE THROUGH ITS AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL AT ALL TIMES HAVE THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO ALL THE
UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OR AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF
INSTALLING, MAINTAINING, REMOVING, REPAIRING OR REPLACING ANY PORTION OF THE FACILITIES INSTALLED BY THE SUPPLIER OF
GAS SERVICE.

2. THE LOT OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF THE UNDERGROUND GAS FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE
SUBDIVISION AND SHALL PREVENT THE ALTERATION OF GRADE OR ANY OTHER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHICH WOULD INTERFERE
WITH GAS SERVICE. THE SUPPLIER OF GAS SERVICE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ORDINARY MAINTENANCE OF ITS FACILITIES,
BUT THE LOT OWNER SHALL PAY FOR DAMAGE OR RELOCATION OF FACILITIES CAUSED OR NECESSITATED BY ACTS OF THE LOT
OWNER, OR THE LOT OWNER'S AGENTS OR CONTRACTORS.

3. THE COVENANTS SET FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE SUPPLIER OF GAS SERVICE, AND THE LOT OWNER
AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THESE COVENANTS.

E.  SURFACE DRAINAGE

EACH LOT SHALL RECEIVE AND DRAIN, IN AN UNOBSTRUCTED MANNER, THE STORMWATER FROM LOTS AND DRAINAGE AREAS OF
HIGHER ELEVATION. NO LOT OWNER SHALL CONSTRUCT OR PERMIT TO BE CONSTRUCTED ANY FENCING OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS
WHICH WOULD IMPAIR THE DRAINAGE OF STORM AND SURFACE WATERS OVER AND ACROSS THE OWNER'S LOT. THE COVENANTS SET
FORTH IN THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY ANY AFFECTED LOT OWNER AND BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

F.  PAVING AND LANDSCAPING WITHIN EASEMENTS

THE LOT OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPAIR OF DAMAGE TO LANDSCAPING AND PAVING OCCASIONED BY INSTALLATION
OR NECESSARY PLACEMENTS, REPLACEMENTS, OR MAINTENANCE OF WATER, SEWER, STORM SEWER, NATURAL GAS, COMMUNICATION,
CABLE TELEVISION, OR ELECTRIC FACILITIES WITHIN THE EASEMENT AREAS DEPICTED UPON THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, PROVIDED
HOWEVER, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA OR THE SUPPLIER OF THE UTILITY SERVICE SHALL USE REASONABLE CARE IN THE
PERFORMANCE OF SUCH ACTIVITIES.

G. LIMITS OF NO ACCESS

THE LOT OWNER HEREBY RELINQUISHES RIGHTS OF VEHICULAR INGRESS OR EGRESS FROM ANY PORTION OF THE PROPERTY
ADJACENT TO EAST ADMIRAL PLACE AND SOUTH 129TH EAST AVENUE WITHIN THE BOUNDS DESIGNATED AS “LIMITS OF NO ACCESS” ON
THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT, WHICH LIMITS OF NO ACCESS MAY BE AMENDED OR RELEASED BY THE TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA
PLANNING COMMISSION, OR ITS SUCCESSOR, WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA, OR AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED
BY THE STATUTES AND LAWS OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA PERTAINING THERETO, AND THE LIMITS OF NO ACCESS ESTABLISHED ABOVE
SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA.

H. SIDEWALKS

SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND MAINTAINED ALONG STREETS DESIGNATED BY AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TULSA
METROPOLITAN AREA SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA AND
ALL SUCH SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO THE FIRST ISSUANCE OF THE FIRST OCCUPANCY PERMIT FOR
ANY BUILDING WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY OF TULSA
ENGINEERING DESIGN STANDARDS.

I.   CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY RESTRICTIONS

NO CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A BUILDING WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ISSUED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA UNTIL
CONSTRUCTION OF THE REQUIRED INFRASTRUCTURE (STREETS, WATER, SANITARY SEWER, STORM SEWER SYSTEMS AND SIDEWALKS)
SERVING THE ENTIRE SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN COMPLETED AND ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA. NOTWITHSTANDING THE
FOREGOING, THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA MAY AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF A TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY IF, IN THE
CITY OF TULSA'S SOLE DISCRETION, THE CIRCUMSTANCES SUPPORT THE ISSUANCE.  FURTHER, NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING,
THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA MAY AUTHORIZE THE PHASING OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION,
AND IF PHASING IS AUTHORIZED, A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A BUILDING WITHIN AN AUTHORIZED PHASE MAY ISSUE UPON THE
COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SERVING THE PARTICULAR PHASE. BUILDING CONSTRUCTION OCCURRING
PRIOR TO THE CITY OF TULSA, OKLAHOMA'S ACCEPTANCE OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE AT THE RISK OF THE LOT OWNER,
NOTWITHSTANDING THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT OR OF A TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY.

SECTION II. ENFORCEMENT, DURATION, AMENDMENT, AND SEVERABILITY

A. ENFORCEMENT

THE COVENANTS HEREIN SET FORTH ARE COVENANTS TO RUN WITH THE LAND AND SHALL BE BINDING UPON THE OWNER, ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  WITHIN THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION I (STREETS, EASEMENTS AND UTILITIES) ARE SET FORTH CERTAIN
COVENANTS AND THE ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS PERTAINING THERETO, AND ADDITIONALLY, THE COVENANTS WITHIN SECTION I, WHETHER
OR NOT SPECIFICALLY THEREIN SO STATED, SHALL INURE TO THE BENEFIT OF AND SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF TULSA,
OKLAHOMA.  IF THE UNDERSIGNED OWNER OR ITS SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS SHALL VIOLATE ANY OF THE COVENANTS WITHIN
SECTIONS I, IT SHALL BE LAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OWNING ANY LOT SITUATED WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION, OR THE CITY OF
TULSA, TO MAINTAIN ANY ACTION AT LAW OR IN EQUITY AGAINST THE PERSON OR PERSONS VIOLATING OR ATTEMPTING TO VIOLATE
ANY SUCH COVENANT, TO PREVENT HIM OR THEM FROM SO DOING OR TO COMPEL COMPLIANCE WITH THE COVENANT OR TO RECOVER
DAMAGES.  IN ANY JUDICIAL ACTION BROUGHT TO ENFORCE THE COVENANTS ESTABLISHED WITHIN THIS DEED OF DEDICATION, THE
DEFENSE THAT THE PARTY INITIATING THE EQUITABLE PROCEEDING HAS AN ADEQUATE REMEDY AT LAW IS HEREBY WAIVED.

B.  DURATION

THESE COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT UNTIL TERMINATED OR AMENDED AS HEREINAFTER
PROVIDED.

C.  AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

THE COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN MAY BE AMENDED OR TERMINATED AT ANY TIME BY A WRITTEN INSTRUMENT SIGNED AND
ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE OWNER AND APPROVED BY THE TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AND THE CITY OF TULSA.
ANY SUCH AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE WHEN RECORDED IN THE RECORDS OF THE TULSA COUNTY CLERK.

D.  SEVERABILITY

INVALIDATION OF ANY COVENANT SET FORTH HEREIN OR ANY PART THEREOF, BY AN ORDER, JUDGMENT, OR DECREE OF ANY COURT,
OR OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT INVALIDATE OR AFFECT ANY OF THE OTHER RESTRICTIONS OR ANY PART THEREOF AS SET FORTH HEREIN,
WHICH SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:  IDO LAND HOLDINGS, LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, HAS EXECUTED THIS INSTRUMENT THIS
_______ DAY OF _________________, 2025.

LDF PROPERTIES OF OKLAHOMA LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

__________________________________________

MEMBER

STATE OF OKLAHOMA          )

                                                 ) SS:

COUNTY OF TULSA               )

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2025, BY ____________ AS MEMBER OF LDF PROPERTIES
OF OKLAHOMA LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION NO:00020202

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:12/11/2028

[SEAL]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:  _______________________________, HAS EXECUTED THIS INSTRUMENT THIS _______ DAY OF _________________, 2025.

IDO LAND HOLDINGS, LLC, AN OKLAHOMA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

__________________________________________

MEMBER

STATE OF OKLAHOMA          )

                                                 ) SS:

COUNTY OF TULSA               )

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2025, BY ____________ AS MEMBER OF IDO LAND
HOLDINGS, LLC.

____________________

NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION NO:00020202

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:12/11/2028

[SEAL]

DATE: 11/10/2025
LDF PARK-PHASE I

DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1
SHEET    OF 3

\\c
iv

il-
se

rv
er

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
24

40
35

8 
LD

F 
Si

te
 D

es
ig

n\
04

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

01
 D

es
ig

n 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\0
5 

Pl
at

\2
44

03
58

 D
O

D
-P

h 
I.d

w
g

PL
O

T:
11

/1
0/

25
O

R
IG

 S
IZ

E:
24

"X
36

"

 ELIZABETH FRANKLIN
Notary Public in and for the

State of Oklahoma
Commission #00020202
Comm. Exp. 12/11/2028

 ELIZABETH FRANKLIN
Notary Public in and for the

State of Oklahoma
Commission #00020202
Comm. Exp. 12/11/2028

7.6



DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1

LDF PARK-PHASE I

3

DEED OF DEDICATION AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

R. WESLEY BENNETT, PLS
OK PLS 1562

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

I, R. WESLEY BENNETT, OF WALLACE DESIGN COLLECTIVE, PC,  A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF
OKLAHOMA, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE CAREFULLY AND ACCURATELY SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED, AND PLATTED THE TRACT OF LAND
DESCRIBED ABOVE, AND THAT THE ACCOMPANYING PLAT DESIGNATED HEREIN AS LDF PARK-PHASE I, A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF TULSA,
TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, IS A TRUE REPRESENTATION OF THE SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND USING GENERALLY ACCEPTED
LAND SURVEYING PRACTICES AND MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE OKLAHOMA MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE PRACTICE OF LAND SURVEYING AS
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS FOR THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF ___________________, 2025.

STATE OF OKLAHOMA   )
                                          ) SS:
COUNTY OF TULSA        )

BEFORE ME THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY AND STATE, ON THIS _____ DAY OF ________________, 2025,
PERSONALLY APPEARED R. WESLEY BENNETT, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE IDENTICAL PERSON WHO SUBSCRIBED HIS NAME AS A LICENSED
LAND SURVEYOR TO THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME AS HIS FREE
AND VOLUNTARY ACT AND DEED FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH.

__________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 12/11/2028
MY COMMISSION NUMBER: 00020202
[SEAL]

 ELIZABETH FRANKLIN
Notary Public in and for the

State of Oklahoma
Commission #00020202
Comm. Exp. 12/11/2028

DATE: 11/10/2025
LDF PARK-PHASE I

DRAFT FINAL PLAT #1
SHEET    OF 3

\\c
iv

il-
se

rv
er

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
24

40
35

8 
LD

F 
Si

te
 D

es
ig

n\
04

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

01
 D

es
ig

n 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\0
5 

Pl
at

\2
44

03
58

 D
O

D
-P

h 
I.d

w
g

PL
O

T:
11

/1
0/

25
O

R
IG

 S
IZ

E:
24

"X
36

"

7.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1562

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENNETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R. WESLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L



WWWWW

SD

WWW

W
W

W W W
SD

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

UC

UE

UE

WV

SD

CO

CO

COCO
COCO

CO

CO

SS

SS
CO

SSL

DS DS DS
DS DS DS

DSDSDS
DSDSDSDSDSDSDSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS DS
DS

DS DS DS DS DS DS

CO

W
W

W
W

W
W

WV

WV

WV

WV

SD

FDC

SC XFMR

XFMR

GM

CO

WV

WV

WV

WM

W
W

IRR

IR
R

WV

PRIVATE
STORM
SEWER

8" SANITARY
SEWER (IDP)

PRIVATE 10"
WATER

POND B

PO
ND A

PRIVATE
STORM
SEWER

STORM
SEWER (IDP)

8" WATER
(IDP)

PRIVATE 10"
WATER

INTERSTATE 44

E. ADMIRAL PL.

LDF DISTRIBUTION
FACILITY

S.
 1

37
TH

 E
. A

VE

STORM SEWER
(IDP)

DETENTION
(IDP)

DETENTION
(IDP)

STORM
SEWER (IDP)

E. 4TH ST. S.

DRIVEWAY
(IDP)

DRIVEWAY
(IDP)

PROPOSED
ROADWAY

 (IDP)

REGULATORY
FLOODPLAIN

FEMA ZONE AE

0 100 200200

1" = 200'

CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR

LDF DISTRIBUTION FACILITY
IDP NO. 223007-2025
13412 E. ADMIRAL PL S TULSA, OK 74108

CITY OF TULSA
ENGINEERING SERVICES
GARY McCLENDON
175 EAST SECOND STREET SUITE 13-401
TULSA, OKLAHOMA 74103
918.596.2578
GMCCLENDON@CITYOFTULSA.ORG

FIRE:
CITY OF TULSA FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE MARSHAL, CODY BANKS
175 EAST 2ND STREET
TULSA, OKLAHOMA 74103
918.596.9429

GAS:
OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS COMPANY
SCOTT GIDEON - NEW SERVICE
5848 EAST 15TH STREET
TULSA, OK  74112
918.831.8386

TELEPHONE:
AT&T
DAVE HENDRICKSON
DH5972@ATT.COM
539.444.1064

CABLE TELEVISION:
COX COMMUNICATIONS
ROBERT DREW
11811 EAST 51ST STREET
TULSA, OK  74145
.918.286.4657

ELECTRIC:
AEP/PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF
OKLAHOMA
DUSTIN PHILLIPS
212 EAST 6TH STREET
TULSA, OK  74102
918.599.6512

OWNER:
LDF PROPERTIES OF OKLAHOMA, LLC
GARY FLEMING
10610 E. 26TH CIR N.
WICHITA, KS 67226
316.636.5575
GFLEMING@LDFCOMPANIES.COM

ENGINEER:
WALLACE DESIGN COLLECTIVE, PC
SCOTT RODEHAVER, PE
123 N. MARTIN LUTHER KING. JR. BLVD
TULSA, OK 74103
918.584.5858
SCOTT.RODEHAVER@WALLACE.DESIGN

SURVEYOR:
SISEMORE & ASSOCIATES, INC.
SHAWN A. COLLINS PLS NO. 1788
6660 S. SHERIDAN ROAD SUITE 210
TULSA, OK 74133
918.665.3600

\\C
iv

il-
Se

rv
er

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
24

40
35

8 
LD

F 
Si

te
 D

es
ig

n\
04

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

01
 D

es
ig

n 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\0
7 

ID
P\

24
40

35
8_

ID
P 

C
ov

er
 S

he
et

.d
w

g
PL

O
T:

12
/1

6/
20

25
 3

:5
5:

39
 P

M
O

R
IG

 S
IZ

E:
22

"X
34

"

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

R
EV

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
AT

E

SHEET NAME

LD
F 

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
13

41
2 

E.
 A

D
M

IR
AL

 P
L 

S 
TU

LS
A,

 O
K 

74
10

8

2440358
DATE 12/16/2025

wallace
design
collective

wallace design collective, pc
structural· civil· landscape· survey
123 north martin luther king jr. blvd.
tulsa, oklahoma 74103
918.584.5858
oklahoma ca1460
exp: 6-30-27

APPROVED
FOR IDP PERMIT ONLY

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER
CITY OF TULSA

MICHAEL LING, PE         DATE

*ITEMS IN ROW ARE PUBLIC, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE
 ITEMS LISTED AS PUBLIC ARE PERMITTED UNDER THIS IDP

CITY OF TULSA
ATLAS PAGE 297

BASIS OF BEARINGS
HORIZONTAL DATUM BASED UPON OKLAHOMA
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM NAD 83 (2011)
NORTH ZONE 3501. VERTICAL DATUM NAVD 1988.

ADS BENCHMARKS:
STATION 7 RESET
5/8" REBAR-2" ALUMINUM CAP
NORTHING=429789.596
EASTING=2613200.688
ELEV: 710.260'

STATION 6
5/8" REBAR-1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP -
SET IN CONCRETE
NORTHING=425120.182
EASTING=2613605.145
ELEV: 744.423'

SITE BENCHMARKS
BENCHMARK 1
MAG NAIL
ELEV: 706.23
N: 427354.80.20
E: 2610703.5630

BENCHMARK 2
MAG NAIL
ELEV: 683.55
N: 428199.2320
E: 2608518.3600

BENCHMARK 3
MAG NAIL
ELEV: 705.72
N: 429644.9980
E: 2609891.8650

BENCHMARK 4
MAG NAIL
ELEV: 724.64
N: 427817.2110
E: 2613341.4990

BENCHMARK 5
3/8" IRON PIN
ELEV: 708.12
N: 425075.5810
E: 2611429.8890

COVER SHEET

GE01

FLOODPLAIN NOTE
WE HAVE EXAMINED A MAP BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, TULSA COUNTY,
OKLAHOMA AND INCORPORATED AREAS, MAP NO'S. 40143C0262L &
40143C0264L, MAPS REVISED: OCTOBER 16, 2012, WHICH SHOWS THE
ENTIRE PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON AS LOCATED
IN ZONES (X)(SHADED) WHICH IS CLASSIFIED AS AREAS OF 500-YEAR
FLOOD; AREAS OF 100-YEAR FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTHS OF LESS
THAN 1 FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS OF LESS THAN 1 SQUARE
MILE; AND AREAS PROTECTED FROM 100-YEAR FLOOD BY LEVEES AND
(X)(UNSHADED) WHICH IS CLASSIFIED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE
OUTSIDE THE 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN.

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT
THIS PROJECT COMPLIES WITH ALL OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (ODEQ) REQUIREMENTS. ENTIRE
PROJECT IS WITHIN CORPORATE LIMITS OF CITY OF TULSA. BY
MY SIGNATURE ON THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, I
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM FAMILIAR WITH THE ADOPTED
ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF TULSA
GOVERNING THE ITEMS IN THE IDP DESCRIPTION; THAT THESE
PLANS HAVE BEEN PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION;
AND THAT THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING PLANS COMPLY WITH
ALL GOVERNING ORDINANCES AND THE ADOPTED STANDARDS
OF THE CITY OF TULSA TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND
BELIEF.

BEDDING DETAIL RIGID PIPE 304
BEDDING DETAIL - SEMI RIGID PIPE 305
STANDARD DETAIL FIRE HYDRANT 309
BLOWOFF HYDRANT 310
SAMPLING TAP ON 4"-12" WATER LINES 311
STANDARD DETAIL VALVE BOX 313
MAHOLES STEPS 314
THRUST BLOCKS AND TRENCH CONDITIONS 315
LOCATOR BALL PLACEMENT DETAIL 322
COMBINATION AIR VACUUM/RELIEF VALVE VAULT FOR 327

2” ARV LESS THAN 5 LBS. IN WEIGHT

BEDDING DETAIL PVC FLEXIBLE SANITARY SEWER PIPE 351
FRAME AND LID FOR 4’ I.D. SANITARY MANHOLE 353
PRE-CAST SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES 358
IN-LINE TEES FOR SERVICE CONNECTIONS 361
MANHOLE STEP LOCATION AND INVERT DETAILS 366
HYDRAULIC SLIDE MANHOLE DETAIL 370
MANHOLE GRADE ADJUSTMENT 401
STREET NAME SIGNS 608A
TRAFFIC SIGNS 608B
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 701
STANDARD DETAIL FOR PAVEMENT CUTS 714
STANDARD PAVEMENT PATCH AND REPAIR 725
CONCRETE PAVEMENT STANDARD DETAILS FOR ALLEYS, 727

RESIDENTIAL, AND COLLECTOR STREETS (SIDEWALKS)
STANDARD CONCRETE PAVEMENT CUT AND REPAIR 731
STANDARD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION FOR UTILITY 733

CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIR
STANDARD PIPE BEDDING DETAIL FOR STORM SEWER 751
PRECAST STANDARD INLETS AND GRATES 762
STANDARD REINFORCED CONCRETE STORMWATER INLETS 764
770 STANDARD DROP INLET 15”, 18”, AND 24” 770
STANDARD DROP INLET 30”, 36”, AND 42” WITH NO 771

ACCESS MANHOLE
STANDARD SIDEWALK RAMP 790

STD NO.CITY OF TULSA STANDARDS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN PART OF LOT ONE (1), BLOCK ONE (1), INLAND TRUCK PARTS, AND A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS FIVE (5), AND SIX (6), AND
PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2 NW/4) OF SECTION FOUR (4), TOWNSHIP NINETEEN (19) NORTH, RANGE FOURTEEN (14)
EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY
THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (S/2, NW/4) OF SAID SECTION FOUR (4); THENCE
N88°32’32”E AND ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID S/2 NW/4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 355.79 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE
ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE PRESENT EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SOUTH 130TH EAST AVENUE, ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
COOLEY CREEK CENTER I, PLAT NO. 5541 TO THE CITY OF TULSA, THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY CURVE TURNING TO THE LEFT
THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 60°00'10", HAVING A RADIUS OF 300.00 FEET, A LENGTH OF 314.17 FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N28°37'21"E FOR A
DISTANCE OF 300.01 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A TANGENT LINE; THENCE N01°22’44”W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR
A DISTANCE OF 510.45 FEET; THENCE S88°37’16”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 94.31 FEET; THENCE N49°00’05”W FOR A DISTANCE OF 63.48; THENCE N32°21’33”W

FOR A DISTANCE OF 55.52 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE NORTHERNMOST CORNER OF SAID
COOLEY CREEK CENTER I; THENCE N29°49’46”E AND LONG SAID I-44 SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 108.24 FEET TO A POINT ON A
CURVE; THEN CONTINING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-O-WAY ON SAID CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 25°49'59", HAVING A RADIUS
OF 1106.23 FEET, A LENGTH OF 498.77  FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N27°50'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 494.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 13°32'16", HAVING A
RADIUS OF 1106.23 FEET, A LENGTH OF 261.38 FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N47°31'11"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 260.77 FEET TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENTIAL LINE; THENCE S88°44'04"W AND CONTINUING ALONG SAID I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A DISTANCE OF 23.42 FEET
TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE; THENCE ALONG THE I-44 RIGHT-OF-WAY ON SAID CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT THROUGH AN
ANGLE OF 29°09'46", HAVING A RADIUS OF 2168.67 FEET, A LENGTH OF 1103.82 FEET AND WHOSE LONG CHORD BEARS N74°09'10"E FOR A DISTANCE OF
1091.95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE POINT BEING 150.00 SOUTH MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY
TO THE CENTERLINE OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE, THE SAID CENTERLINE ALSO BEING THE NORTHERLY LINE OF GOVERNMENT LOT 6 OF SAID SECTION 4;
THENCE N88°44'04"E AND ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 76.18 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF INLAND TRUCK PARTS, PLAT NO. 6512 TO THE CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK
PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.81 FEET; THENCE N88°44'04"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 637.93 FEET TO THE EAST LINE AND TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS; THENCE N01°25'07"W AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID INLAND TRUCK PARTS PLAT FOR A DISTANCE OF
501.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE; THENCE N88°44'04"E ALONG SAID
SOURTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF ALBERTSONS TULSA
DISTRIBUTION PLAT NO. 5335 TO THE CITY OF TULSA; THENCE S01°25'07"E AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID ALBERTSON TULSA DISTURBUTION PLAT
ALSO BEING THE EAST LINE OF THE NW/4 OF SECTION 4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.14 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; THENCE
S01°25'07"E AND PARALLEL TO SAID EAST LINE OF THE NW/4 OF SECTION 4 FOR A DISTANCE OF 270.86 FEET; THENCE S88°44'04"W AND PARALLEL TO
THE AFORMENTIONED CENTERLINE OF EAST ADMIRAL PLACE FOR A DISTANCE OF 647.93 FEET; THENCE N77°04'09"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 51.61 FEET;
THENCE N81°11'52"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 331.87 FEET; THENCE S87°31'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 52.29 FEET; THENCE S73°51'02"W FOR A DISTANCE OF
90.59 FEET; THENCE S68°13'59"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 81.19 FEET; THENCE S41°40'17"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 178.84 FEET; THENCE S64°08'13"W FOR A
DISTANCE OF 101.60 FEET; THENCE S 87° 40' 07" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 107.08 FEET; THENCE N71°25'00"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 114.76 FEET; THENCE
N42°27'31"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 122.71 FEET; THENCE N23°45'43"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 201.90 FEET; THENCE N10°53'39"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.40
FEET; THENCE N22°35'54"E FOR A DISTANCE OF 92.37 FEET; N74°56'08"W FOR A DISTANCE OF 100.45 FEET; THENCE N38°20'22"W FOR A DISTANCE OF
88.94 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE 44 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID TRACT
CONTAINING 28.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

TOTAL SITE  AREA:   1,261,399.49 SF (28.96 AC)
TOTAL DISTURBED AREA   1,017,555.00 SF (23.36 AC)
EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA         0.00 SF (0.00 AC)
PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA IDP     41,462 SF (0.95 AC)
PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA ON-SITE 723,778 SF (16.62 AC)
TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA 765,250 SF (17.57 AC)
NET INCREASE 765,250 SF (17.57 AC)

IMPERVIOUS AREA TABLE

RIGHT OF WAY
CONSTRUCTION PERMIT
BEFORE BLOCKING ANY LANE OF TRAFFIC,
ANY SIDEWALK OR ANY PARKING METER OR
BEFORE CUTTING ANY STREET, SIDEWALK, OR
ALLEY YOU MUST FIRST APPLY FOR AND BE
GRANTED A RIGHT OF WAY CONSTRUCTION
PERMIT. PERMIT APPLICATIONS CAN BE
PICKED UP ON THE 4TH FLOOR OF CITY HALL
(175 E 2ND ST TULSA, OK). APPLICATION
PACKETS CAN BE SUBMITTED TO THE
STREETS AND STORMWATER DEPARTMENT
ON THE 4TH FLOOR OF CITY HALL OR THEY
CAN BE ELECTRONICALLY SUBMITTED AT
ROWPERMITS@CITYOFTULSA.ORG.

IDP DESCRIPTION
THE FOLLOWING ARE IN EASEMENTS,
RESERVE AREAS & RIGHT OF WAY TO SERVE
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY (IDP 223007-2025) :

-PUBLIC STREETS
-DRIVEWAYS IN PUBLIC ROW
-PRIVATE STORM WATER DETENTION PONDS
-PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION
-PUBLIC WATER LINE EXTENSION
-PUBLIC STORM SEWER
-SIDEWALK AND ADA RAMPS

LEGEND

(M) MEASURED DATA
(R) RECORD DATA
BC BACK OF CURB
BL BUILDING LINE
CL CENTERLINE
CPP   CORRUGATED

POLYPROPYLENE PIPE
DO DOOR OPENING
EG EXISTING GRADE
FF FINISHED FLOOR
FG FINISHED GRADE
FL FLOWLINE
GL GUTTER LINE
HP HIGH POINT
HP HIGH-PERFORMANCE 

POLYPROPYLENE
INV INVERT
LF LINEAR FEET
LP LOW POINT
ME MATCH EXISTING
OHD OVERHEAD DOOR
RW RIGHT-OF-WAY
SF SQUARE FEET
SY SQUARE YARDS
TBK TOP OF BANK
TC TOP OF CURB
TG TOP OF GRATE
TOE TOE OF BANK
TP TOP OF PAVEMENT
TR TOP OF RIM
TS TOP OF SIDEWALK
TSMH TRAFFIC SIGNAL     

  MANHOLE
TW TOP OF WALL

CENTERLINE
SILT FENCE
LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION
PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR
PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

EASEMENT
FENCE
PROPERTY LINE
LOT LINE
BUILDING SETBACK
FIBER OPTIC
OVERHEAD COMMUNICATION
UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATION
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
NATURAL GAS
SEWER FORCE MAIN
SANITARY SEWER MAIN
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE
DRAINAGE AREA, MAJOR

DRAINAGE FLOW PATH
DRAINAGE AREA, MINOR

STORM DRAINAGE PIPE
FIRE LINE
WATER LINE

SF

X X

FO
OC
UC
OE
UE
G

FM
SS

SSL

SD
F
W

PLM

WV

WSO
ICV

PB

VENT

DS

CO

UTILITY POLE

GUY ANCHOR

COMMUNICATION PEDESTALC

ELECTRIC BOX
ELECTRIC METER

A/C UNIT
ELECTRIC MANHOLE

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

LIGHT POLE

EB

EM

E

XFMR

A/C

PIPE BOLLARD

BENCHMARK
ACCESSIBLE PARKING
MAILBOX

C

GM

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

GAS METER
GAS VALVE
OIL/GAS WELLHEAD

MB

MW MONITORING WELL
POTHOLE

VENT PIPE
PIPELINE MARKER

SP

DOWNSPOUT

SIGN

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

FIRE HYDRANT

SHUT-OFF VALVE
SPRINKLER HEAD
WATER METER

IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

WATER VALVE

SS
SEWER CLEAN-OUT
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

YARD HYDRANT

SD
ROOF DRAINRD

GV

WM

YH

LP

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR
EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

ABBREVIATIONS SYMBOLSLINETYPES

WATER SERVICE LINEWSL
IRRIGATION LINEIRR

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTIONFDC

660
661

661
660

LIST OF SHEETS
GE01 - COVER SHEET
GE02 - GENERAL NOTES*
GE03 - DRAFT FINAL PLAT*
GE04 - SURVEY*
GE05 - OVERALL DEMOLITION PLAN
GE06 - DETAILED DEMOLITION PLAN
GE07 - IDP SITE MAP
GE08 - GRADING PLAN WEST
GE09 - GRADING PLAN EAST
GE10 - EROSION CONTROL PLAN WEST
GE11 - EROSION CONTROL PLAN EAST
GE12 - EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
PV01 - PAVING PLAN
PV02 - PAVING PROFILES
PV03 - INTERSECTION DETAILS 1
PV04 - INTERSECTION DETAILS 2
PV05 - SIGNAGE PLAN
SW01 - EXISTING DETENTION DRAINAGE AREA MAP
SW02 - PROPOSED DETENTION DRAINAGE AREA MAP
SW03 - PROPOSED STORM DRAINAGE AREA MAP
SW04 - OVERALL STORM PLAN WEST
SW05 - OVERALL STORM PLAN EAST
SW06 - PUBLIC STORM PROFILES
SW07 - PRIVATE STORM PROFILES 1
SW08 - PRIVATE STORM PROFILES 2
SW09 - PRIVATE STORM PROFILES 3
SW10 - STORM DETAILS 1
SW11 - DETENTION POND A
SW12 - DETENTION POND B
SS01 - SANITARY SEWER DRAINAGE MAP
SS02 - SANITARY SEWER PLAN
SS03 - SANITARY SEWER PROFILE
WL01 - WATERLINE PLAN
WL02 - WATERLINE PROFILES 1
WL03 - WATERLINE PROFILES 2
SD01 - SURVEY DATA WEST*
SD02 - SURVEY DATA EAST*

CAUTION
NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR

THE CONTRACTOR IS SPECIFICALLY
CAUTIONED THE LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF EXISTING UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THESE
PLANS ARE BASED ON RECORDS OF THE
VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES AND
MEASUREMENTS TAKEN IN THE FIELD. THE
INFORMATION IS NOT TO BE RELIED ON AS
BEING EXACT OR COMPLETE. THE
CONTRACTOR MUST CALL THE LOCAL UTILITY
LOCATION CENTER AT LEAST 72 HOURS
BEFORE ANY EXCAVATION TO REQUEST
EXACT FIELD LOCATIONS OF THE UTILITIES.

GENERAL NOTE
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN
CONSTRUCTION AS-BUILTS AS PER COT SPEC 334.
SAMPLING AND TESTING SHALL BE PER COT SPEC 335

GENERAL NOTE
ALL RESERVE AREAS, PROPERTY
LINES AND EASEMENTS ARE PER
PLAT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

FLYING J
TRAVEL PLAZA

4 19

14

(I-44) SKELLY DRIVE

EAST 11TH STREET

12
9T

H
 E

AS
T 

AV
EN

U
E

14
5T

H
 E

AS
T 

AV
EN

U
E

E

Location Map

R

T

N

SCALE: 1"=2000'

E. 7TH STREET S.

E. 4TH STREET S.

E. ADMIRAL PL.

(I-4
4) SKELLY DRIVE UNPC. EMIT

WILSON

ALBERTSON'S TULSA

DISTRIBUTION

HEIGHTS
MEADOW BROOK

UNP

UNP

UNP

AC
R

ES
G

O
LD

EN

AC
R

ES
 2

N
D

11
TH

 S
TR

EE
T

(I-244) EXPRESSWAY/

SITE

BELGRAY

COOLEY CREEK
CENTER I

HICKORY
HOLLOW PATIO
HOMES RESUB APAC 11TH

STREET FACILITY

RESTORATION
CHURCH

UNP

UNP

INLAND
TRUCK
PARTS

PREFABRICATED CULVERT END SECTIONS (PCES 5-1) R-34
TEMPORARY SILT DIKE INLET PROTECTION                                     TSD-2

STD NO.ODOT STANDARDS

*  SHEETS ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY.

IDP "BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT" EASEMENT INDEX
TYPE SHEET NUMBER OWNER DOCUMENT NO.
UTILITY EASEMENT SS02 LDF PROPERTIES OF OKLAHOMA, LLC -
RESTRICTED WATER LINE  EASEMENT WL01 LDF PROPERTIES OF OKLAHOMA, LLC -

IDP PRE-DEVELOPMENT MEETING FOR LDF PARK WAS HELP
ON DECEMBER 9, 2024 - 3:00PM UNDER THE PROJECT NAME
LDF PARK - TULSA, OK IN LIEU OF SIDEWALK ALONG S 137TH AVE E,

A FEE WAS PAID ON XX/XX/XXXX, RECEIPT #
XXXXX

12.16.25

7.8



Tulsa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission 

Staff Report: Second Amended Downtown Area 
Economic Development Project Plan 
 
Hearing Date: February 4, 2026 
Prepared by: Jeremy Banes 

jbanes@cityoftulsa.org 
918-596-7646

Page 1 of 10 

Item 
Adopt a resolution of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission determining that the Second 
Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is in conformance with the Tulsa 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend its approval to the City of Tulsa. 

Background 
The Oklahoma Constitution authorizes special financing tools to assist with the development or redevelopment 
of areas determined by a city, town, or county to be unproductive, undeveloped, underdeveloped, or blighted. 
The Local Development§ Act provides those tools and guidelines limiting their use to areas where investment, 
development, and economic growth are difficult but possible if the Act is used. 

The Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan (“Project Plan”) is a financing tool necessary for the 
implementation of the City’s vision.  This is a project plan as defined under the Oklahoma Local Development 
Act, 62 O.S. §850, et seq. (“Act”). 

One of the Act’s tools is tax increment financing, which allows a city, town or county to direct the 
apportionment of an increment of certain local taxes and fees to finance public project costs in order to 
stimulate development in the defined area.  The ad valorem taxes are generated by the project(s) in the 
increment district. The increment district is established by the development and approval of a project plan, 
which specifies the project area, the boundaries of the increment district, the objectives for the project area, the 
activities to be carried out in furtherance of those objectives, and the costs. 

The Project Plan seeks to provide an economic structure and funding mechanism authorized by the Act for a 
substantial portion of the local public investment necessary to provide the public improvements recommended 
by the Downtown Area Economic Development Plan and to generate additional private investment throughout 
the Project Area. Public investments are planned for: approved public infrastructure, development financing 
assistance, and support for public education.  The Project Plan, in Section IX(C) authorizes a revenue sharing 
formula to support the Tulsa Public Schools (Independent School District No. I-1). Funding for these public 
investments will be generated by the implementation of multiple Increment Districts. 

The Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is a TIF. The Project Area is the area in which 
project activities will take place and project expenditures may be made. The Project area is generally located 
south of Highway 412, west of the Cherokee Expressway, north of Highway 64, east of North Denver Avenue, as 
well as a portion north of Highway 412 along Highway 75. 
. 

8.1



Page 2 of 10 

Map of Project Area and Increment Districts 
 

 
  

8.2



Page 3 of 10 

Objectives 
The Project Plan and the Increment Districts will be used to pay the public costs of projects that support the 
following objectives:  
 

A. To facilitate the development of the Project Area and initiate a catalytic effect for surrounding or 
nearby neighborhoods in downtown Tulsa. 

 
B. To provide a funding mechanism for a substantial portion of the local public investment 

required to fund identified public infrastructure for the Project Area. 
 
C. To enhance the tax base and make possible investment, development, and economic growth 

that would otherwise be difficult without the Project and the apportionment of incremental tax 
revenues. 

 
D. To activate the street level and enhance pedestrian accessibility within downtown Tulsa. 

 
E. To establish minimum design standards to promote high quality development and placemaking for the 

Project Area. 
 

F. To create destinations that encourage private investment and activity supporting a 24/7 environment 
downtown. 
 

G. To fund implementation of adopted plans and policies related to development including Complete 
Streets, Tula, Oklahoma Downtown Walkability Analysis, Go Plan, Downtown Area Master Plan, Downtown 
Streetscape Master Plan, PLANiTULSA. 
 

H. To Support the development of housing in a variety of types and with a range of prices, including housing 
that is affordable to residents with incomes at or below the area median. 
 

I. To repurpose and activate vacant and underutilized property and support revitalization of existing historic 
resources and structures. 
 

J. To ensure access to open space, parks, trails and the Arkansas River from all parts of downtown Tulsa. 
 

K. To support transit and transportation systems and networks connecting downtown Tulsa to other parts of 
the City and beyond. 

 
Statement of Principal Actions 
Implementation actions for the project, including all necessary, appropriate and supportive steps, will consist 
principally of the following: 
 

A. Project planning, design, and approval.  
 
B. Leveraging private development, including residential, commercial, office, retail, entertainment, 

and mixed-use, pursuant to development or redevelopment agreements with the Tulsa 
Authority for Economic Opportunity, a public trust (“Authority”) or other public trust designated 
by the City. 

 

8.3



Page 4 of 10 

C. Assisting the financing of other public development costs and facilities, including without 
limitation planning, financing, acquisition, construction, and long-term leasing or disposition of 
property and public facilities pursuant to development or redevelopment agreements with 
private developers or designated public entities, and providing for development of public or 
private facilities to be financed in whole or in part by apportioned tax increments from the 
Increment District created pursuant to this Project Plan. 

 
D. Financing authorized project costs in support of economic development and neighborhood 

revitalization within the Project Area. 
 
E. Distribution of a portion of the ad valorem increment to Tulsa Public Schools (Independent 

School District I-1). 
 
 
Review of the Project Plan for Conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan 
Prior to submittal to City Council, TMAPC is asked to review the Project Plan and adopt a resolution stating that 
the plan is in conformance with the adopted Tulsa Comprehensive Plan. Staff analysis will focus on six aspects 
of the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan: the Major Street and Highway Plan; Land Use Map; Comprehensive Plan 
Priorities; and Downtown Area Master Plan, Brady Arts District Small Area Plan, and the Unity Heritage 
Neighborhoods Plan. 
 

A. Major Street and Highway Plan  
The Major Street and Highway Plan (MSHP) identifies the following street and highway 
classifications in or near the project area: 
 
• Freeways:  

Highway 412, Interstate 244, US Highway 75, Cherokee Expressway, US Highway 64 
 

• Secondary Arterials: 
S Houston Avenue 
 

• Secondary Arterials designated as Multi-Modal Corridors: 
Martin Luther King Jr Boulevard, W 12th Street S west of S Denver Avenue 
 

• Urban Arterials: 
S Denver Avenue south of US Highway 64, E 3rd Street S East of US Highway 75, E 3rd Street 
between S Heavy Traffic Way and S Houston Avenue 

 
• Urban Arterials designated as Multi-Modal Corridors: 

E 11th Street S east of Elgin Avenue, Charles Page Boulevard west of S Heavy Traffic Way 
 

• Commercial/CBD/Industrial Collector 
S Houston Avenue between, W 3rd Street and W 7th Street, S Denver Avenue, S Cheyenne 
Avenue, S Boulder Avenue, S Main Street north of E 1st Street and south of W 6th Street, N 
Boston Avenue north of E Archer Street and a segment north of E 1st Street and south of E 3rd 
Street, Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard/S Cincinnati Avenue north of the Broken Arrow 
Expressway, N Detroit Avenue, N Elgin Avenue, S Kenosha Avenue north of E 2nd Street, W 
Reconciliation Way, E Archer Street west of Interstate 244, E 1st Street, W 1st Street, S Heavy 

8.4



Page 5 of 10 

Traffic Way, E 2nd Street, W 2nd Street, E 3rd Street west of S Detroit Avenue, W 3rd Street east 
of S Houston Avenue, E 4th Street, W 4th Street, E 6th Street, W 6th Street, E 7th Street, W 7th 
Street, E 8th Street, W 8th Street, E 10th Street, W 10th Street, W 11th Street, E 13th Street west 
of S Cincinnati Avenue 

 
• Commercial/Industrial Streets: 

E 3rd Street west of S Detroit Avenue, S Kenosha Avenue between E 2nd Street and E 7th Street, 
and S Kenosha Avenue between E 7th Street and E 8th Street 
 

• Residential Collector: 
N Greenwood Avenue north of E Archer Street, S Cincinnati Avenue south of Broken Arrow 
Expressway, S Houston Avenue between S Heavy Traffic Way and W 3rd Street, W Archer Street 
west of Interstate 244 
 

 

8.5



Page 6 of 10 

B. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 
Land Use Designations  
The “Objectives” and “Statement of Principal Actions” in the Second Amended Downtown 
Area Economic Development Project Plan are fully consistent with the Land use designations 
“Downtown”, “Regional Center”, and “Parks and Open Space”. 
 Downtown (shown in purple): 

Accounts for most properties in the project area within the Inner Dispersal Loop. 
 Regional Center (shown below in red): 

Accounts for most of the project area above Interstate 244. 
 Neighborhood (Shown is light yellow) 

Accounts for a small strip north of Interstate 244 and east of US Highway 75. 
 Parks and Open Space (shown in dark green): 

Accounts for a small areas scattered within the Inner Dispersal Loop and one area north 
of Interstate 244 and east of US Highway 75.  

 

 

8.6



Page 7 of 10 

C. Comprehensive Plan Priorities 
The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan contains multiple priorities, goals, and policies to promote economic 
development to attract investment, enhance the tax base, stimulate economic growth, and improve 
the quality of life in and around the City. The following are portions of the Comprehensive Plan (not 
all encompassing) that align with the objectives of the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic 
Development Project Plan and the supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts that can be 
implemented through the benefits of the Project Plan. 

 
Future Land Use 

• GOAL LU 1 Tulsa’s land use decisions promote fiscal stability and move the city towards 
the community’s vision. 

• ACTION LU 1.3.3 - Continue to include recommendations from Small Area 
Plans in the development of staff recommendations for land use 
decisions. 

• GOAL LU 3 - Economic development is facilitated at the neighborhood, city, and regional 
scales. 

• STRATEGY LU 3.2 - Focus regional investments along major transportation 
corridors, including highways and public transit routes. 

• ACTION LU 3.2.1 - Direct the majority of employment growth and change 
to areas of the city with access to major transportation infrastructure, such 
as highways, railroads, public transportation, the airport, and Tulsa Ports. 

• STRATEGY LU 3.4 - Encourage continued growth and investment in downtown as 
a major center for jobs, transit, services, and civic and cultural institutions for the 
entire city and region. 

• ACTION LU 3.4.1 - Maintain downtown as the city's densest urban 
neighborhood, incorporating the highest potential density of commercial 
and residential land use. 

• ACTION LU 3.4.3 - Encourage a 24-hour downtown with a diverse mix of 
uses and activation at all different times of the day. 

• STRATEGY LU 3.6 - Encourage development that fills existing market gaps and 
provides for the necessities of life. 

• ACTION LU 3.6.3 - Encourage infill development on underutilized surface 
parking lots, particularly in the downtown area. 

• GOAL LU 4 - Redevelopment, revitalization, and enhancement programs are focused in 
areas that have been economically disadvantaged. 

• ACTION LU 4.2.3 - Evaluate dedicating a portion of the ad valorem 
increment generated by TIF Districts located within the Tulsa Public 
School District catchment area to the school district. 

• STRATEGY LU 4.4 - Promote the adaptive reuse and rehabilitation of vacant or 
underutilized structures and buildable land to aid the revitalization of area 
neighborhoods and development of affordable housing. 

• GOAL LU 6 - Commercial areas and activity centers complement their surrounding uses. 
• STRATEGY LU 6.2 - Encourage transit-oriented commercial, mixed-use, and 

residential development along existing and planned bus rapid transit (BRT) 
routes. 

• ACTION LU 6.2.3 - Support higher-density residential development along 
BRT corridors in locations identified in corresponding Land Use 
Frameworks. 

8.7



Page 8 of 10 

• GOAL LU 8 - Tulsa's natural and architectural assets are preserved and enhanced. 
• GOAL LU 9 - Tulsa is a leader in sustainable development practices. 

• STRATEGY LU 9.2 - Support and incentivize adaptive reuse of buildings, infill 
development, and brownfield redevelopment. 

• GOAL LU 10 - Future growth is balanced with the ability to provide public services and 
infrastructure. 

• STRATEGY LU 10.2 - Prioritize compact development and infill development for 
more efficient use of existing infrastructure and services. 

 
Transportation 

• STRATEGY TR 5.2 - Ensure land use decisions are reflective of and responsive to the 
transportation infrastructure context. 

• ACTION TR 5.2.1 - Encourage compact and infill development to optimize the use 
of existing infrastructure. 

• ACTION TR 5.2.2 - Encourage mixed-use developments and housing near 
employment areas to decrease long vehicle trips. 
 

Economic Development 
• GOAL ED 1 - Economic growth and development contribute to a prosperous and diverse 

economy capable of providing access to economic opportunity for all Tulsans. 
• GOAL ED 2 - Local and prospective businesses have easy access to a spectrum of 

economic development information and resources. 
• STRATEGY ED 2.3 - Maintain and promote access to economic development and 

revitalization tools, including tax-increment financing (TIF), business improvement 
districts, the Economic Infrastructure Fund, the Downtown Revolving Loan Fund, 
and the Property Assessed Clean Energy program. 

• GOAL ED 4 - New development supports vibrant, sustainable, transit-oriented 
communities. 

• STRATEGY ED 4.1 - Encourage infill development in areas served by public 
transportation. 

• ACTION ED 4.1.2 - Create a comprehensive and flexible package of 
financial incentives to encourage infill in targeted areas and corridors. 

• STRATEGY ED 4.2 - Ensure that new employment development is well-connected 
to multimodal transportation networks. 

• ACTION ED 4.2.1 - Incentivize housing and commercial growth along high 
frequency transit corridors. 

• ACTION ED 4.2.5 - Encourage business expansion along transit routes to 
increase the amount of goods and services available to riders. 

• STRATEGY ED 4.5 - Ensure adequate infrastructure, utilities, and public safety 
services are in place for new and proposed development. 

• STRATEGY ED 4.6 - Foster the success of the downtown area through targeted 
investment, incentives, and revitalization strategies. 

• ACTION ED 4.6.2 - Use increment funding from TIF districts to accomplish 
downtown area development goals. 

• ACTION ED 4.6.3 - Better integrate downtown area university and college 
campuses through pedestrian, bike, and bus connections, and encourage 
additional student housing and support services. 

8.8





Page 10 of 10 

• Action 23 - Offer mixed urban lifestyle options and other strategies to attract new 
residents. 

• Action 24 - Continue efforts to renovate upper levels of historic buildings for housing. 
• Action 29 - Develop strategies to bring capital partners to the table to encourage 

investing. 
 

F. Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan 
The Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan has recommendations that align with the objectives of the 
Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and the supporting Tax Increment Financing 
Districts. 

 
• Goal 4 - Capitalize on OSU-Tulsa, Langston University Tulsa, and proximity to Downtown 

to spur redevelopment of the southern edge of the Unity Heritage Area. 
• Goal 7 – Enhance local commerce and access to important goods and services. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation 
The Objectives and Principal Actions in the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project 
Plan and supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts are consistent with the Major Street & Highway Plan, 
Land Use Map, Comprehensive Plan Priorities, and Downtown Area Master Plan, Brady Arts District Small Area 
Plan, and the Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan. Staff recommends approval of the Second Amended 
Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts, finding 
it to be in conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Attachment 
• Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan  

8.10


























































	Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission
	Tulsa City Council Chambers, 175 E. 2nd St., Tulsa, OK 74103
	Introduction and Notice to the Public
	How to Participate

	Call to Order
	Reports
	Chairperson’s Report
	Director’s Report
	Approval of Minutes
	Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the following:
	1. Minutes from Meeting 2953, February 4, 2026

	Consent Agenda
	Public Hearing – Rezoning
	Review and possible recommendation of approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the following:
	2. CZ-577 (County)  Withdrawn by applicant

	County Commission District: 2
	Applicant: Belinda A. Bentley
	Action Requested: Rezoning from AG-R to AG (Continued from January 7, 2026)
	3. MPD-6

	Location: Multiple properties bounded by U.S. Highway 412, East 41st Street South, South 193rd East Avenue, and South 273rd East Avenue
	City Council District: 6
	Applicant: Fair Oaks Ranch, LLC and Rob-Wal, LLC
	Action Requested: Rezoning from AG to MPD-6 (Continued from November 5, 2025, and January 7, 2026)
	4. PUD-876 (County)

	Public Hearing - Plats
	5. 126th Business Park (County)
	6. Air Guard Substation

	Public Hearing – Accelerated Release of a Building Permit
	7. LDF Park

	Public Hearing – Comprehensive Plan Conformance
	8. Consider adopting a resolution of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission determining that the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is in conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan and recommend its approval to ...

	Other Business
	9. Commissioners’ Comments

	Adjournment
	Blank Page
	CZ-577 withdraw letter 2.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	PUD-876 Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits
	Center 75 Site plan 11-21-25.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1.1 (2)


	EXHIBIT I Site Elevation Grading Concept.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Landscaping Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PUD-876 Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits

	PUD-876 Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits

	PUD-876 Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits

	PUD-876 Staff Report Working 1.28.26.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits


	126th Business Park Staff Report final.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits
	126th Business Park Staff Report kd 1.26.26.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits

	126th Business Park Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits

	126th Business Park Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	Zoning History
	Exhibits


	Air Guard Substation.pdf
	Detailed Staff Recommendation
	Comprehensive Plan Considerations
	Exhibits
	Air-Guard-Substation.pdf
	[  ] SUBDIVISION PLAT [  ] MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT
	APPLICATION INFORMATION
	SUBJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
	INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR PROPOSAL

	DOES OWNER CONSENT TO THIS APPLICATION [  ] YES  [  ] NO
	WHAT IS APPLICANT’S RELATIONSHIP TO OWNER?
	SUBDIVISION PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW
	PROJECT INFORMATION
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATUS
	ZONING AND PLATTING
	INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS

	Contact the Tulsa Planning Office if you have questions about the development process in the City Tulsa:
	918-596-5726, planning@cityoftulsa.org.
	SUBDIVISION PLAT PROCESS
	PRELIMINARY PLAT PROCESS
	FINAL PLAT PROCESS



	LDF Park- Staff Report.pdf
	Exhibits
	LDF-Park-Accelerated-Release.pdf
	LDF Park - DFP- Stamped- 11.12.25.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1


	2440358 Draft Final Plat-Ph I-Binder.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1



	2440358 Draft Final Plat-Ph I-Binder.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1


	LDF-Park-Accelerated-Release.pdf
	LDF Park - DFP- Stamped- 11.12.25.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1


	2440358 Draft Final Plat-Ph I-Binder.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1




	Second Amended Downtown Development Plan staff report.pdf
	2nd Amended Downtown Plan Conformance Staff-Report 260126.pdf
	Item
	Adopt a resolution of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission determining that the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is in conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan and recommend its approval to the City of Tulsa.
	Background

	The Oklahoma Constitution authorizes special financing tools to assist with the development or redevelopment of areas determined by a city, town, or county to be unproductive, undeveloped, underdeveloped, or blighted. The Local Development§ Act provid...
	The Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan (“Project Plan”) is a financing tool necessary for the implementation of the City’s vision.  This is a project plan as defined under the Oklahoma Local Development Act, 62 O.S. §850, et seq. (“Act”).
	One of the Act’s tools is tax increment financing, which allows a city, town or county to direct the apportionment of an increment of certain local taxes and fees to finance public project costs in order to stimulate development in the defined area.  ...
	The Project Plan seeks to provide an economic structure and funding mechanism authorized by the Act for a substantial portion of the local public investment necessary to provide the public improvements recommended by the Downtown Area Economic Develop...
	The Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is a TIF. The Project Area is the area in which project activities will take place and project expenditures may be made. The Project area is generally located south of Highway 412, west of the Cherok...
	.
	Map of Project Area and Increment Districts
	Objectives
	The Project Plan and the Increment Districts will be used to pay the public costs of projects that support the following objectives:
	A. To facilitate the development of the Project Area and initiate a catalytic effect for surrounding or nearby neighborhoods in downtown Tulsa.
	B. To provide a funding mechanism for a substantial portion of the local public investment required to fund identified public infrastructure for the Project Area.
	C. To enhance the tax base and make possible investment, development, and economic growth that would otherwise be difficult without the Project and the apportionment of incremental tax revenues.
	D. To activate the street level and enhance pedestrian accessibility within downtown Tulsa.

	E. To establish minimum design standards to promote high quality development and placemaking for the Project Area.
	F. To create destinations that encourage private investment and activity supporting a 24/7 environment downtown.
	G. To fund implementation of adopted plans and policies related to development including Complete Streets, Tula, Oklahoma Downtown Walkability Analysis, Go Plan, Downtown Area Master Plan, Downtown Streetscape Master Plan, PLANiTULSA.
	H. To Support the development of housing in a variety of types and with a range of prices, including housing that is affordable to residents with incomes at or below the area median.
	I. To repurpose and activate vacant and underutilized property and support revitalization of existing historic resources and structures.
	J. To ensure access to open space, parks, trails and the Arkansas River from all parts of downtown Tulsa.
	K. To support transit and transportation systems and networks connecting downtown Tulsa to other parts of the City and beyond.
	Statement of Principal Actions

	Implementation actions for the project, including all necessary, appropriate and supportive steps, will consist principally of the following:
	A. Project planning, design, and approval.
	B. Leveraging private development, including residential, commercial, office, retail, entertainment, and mixed-use, pursuant to development or redevelopment agreements with the Tulsa Authority for Economic Opportunity, a public trust (“Authority”) or ...
	C. Assisting the financing of other public development costs and facilities, including without limitation planning, financing, acquisition, construction, and long-term leasing or disposition of property and public facilities pursuant to development or...
	D. Financing authorized project costs in support of economic development and neighborhood revitalization within the Project Area.
	E. Distribution of a portion of the ad valorem increment to Tulsa Public Schools (Independent School District I-1).
	Review of the Project Plan for Conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan

	Prior to submittal to City Council, TMAPC is asked to review the Project Plan and adopt a resolution stating that the plan is in conformance with the adopted Tulsa Comprehensive Plan. Staff analysis will focus on six aspects of the Tulsa Comprehensive...
	A. Major Street and Highway Plan

	The Major Street and Highway Plan (MSHP) identifies the following street and highway classifications in or near the project area:
	 Freeways:  Highway 412, Interstate 244, US Highway 75, Cherokee Expressway, US Highway 64
	 Secondary Arterials: S Houston Avenue
	 Secondary Arterials designated as Multi-Modal Corridors: Martin Luther King Jr Boulevard, W 12th Street S west of S Denver Avenue
	 Urban Arterials: S Denver Avenue south of US Highway 64, E 3rd Street S East of US Highway 75, E 3rd Street between S Heavy Traffic Way and S Houston Avenue
	 Urban Arterials designated as Multi-Modal Corridors: E 11th Street S east of Elgin Avenue, Charles Page Boulevard west of S Heavy Traffic Way
	 Commercial/CBD/Industrial Collector S Houston Avenue between, W 3rd Street and W 7th Street, S Denver Avenue, S Cheyenne Avenue, S Boulder Avenue, S Main Street north of E 1st Street and south of W 6th Street, N Boston Avenue north of E Archer Stree...
	 Commercial/Industrial Streets: E 3rd Street west of S Detroit Avenue, S Kenosha Avenue between E 2nd Street and E 7th Street, and S Kenosha Avenue between E 7th Street and E 8th Street
	 Residential Collector: N Greenwood Avenue north of E Archer Street, S Cincinnati Avenue south of Broken Arrow Expressway, S Houston Avenue between S Heavy Traffic Way and W 3rd Street, W Archer Street west of Interstate 244
	B. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map
	Land Use Designations


	The “Objectives” and “Statement of Principal Actions” in the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan are fully consistent with the Land use designations “Downtown”, “Regional Center”, and “Parks and Open Space”.
	 Downtown (shown in purple): Accounts for most properties in the project area within the Inner Dispersal Loop.
	 Regional Center (shown below in red): Accounts for most of the project area above Interstate 244.
	 Neighborhood (Shown is light yellow) Accounts for a small strip north of Interstate 244 and east of US Highway 75.
	 Parks and Open Space (shown in dark green): Accounts for a small areas scattered within the Inner Dispersal Loop and one area north of Interstate 244 and east of US Highway 75.
	C. Comprehensive Plan Priorities

	The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan contains multiple priorities, goals, and policies to promote economic development to attract investment, enhance the tax base, stimulate economic growth, and improve the quality of life in and around the City. The followin...
	Future Land Use

	 GOAL LU 1 Tulsa’s land use decisions promote fiscal stability and move the city towards the community’s vision.
	 ACTION LU 1.3.3 - Continue to include recommendations from Small Area Plans in the development of staff recommendations for land use decisions.
	 GOAL LU 3 - Economic development is facilitated at the neighborhood, city, and regional scales.
	 STRATEGY LU 3.2 - Focus regional investments along major transportation corridors, including highways and public transit routes.
	 ACTION LU 3.2.1 - Direct the majority of employment growth and change to areas of the city with access to major transportation infrastructure, such as highways, railroads, public transportation, the airport, and Tulsa Ports.
	 STRATEGY LU 3.4 - Encourage continued growth and investment in downtown as a major center for jobs, transit, services, and civic and cultural institutions for the entire city and region.
	 ACTION LU 3.4.1 - Maintain downtown as the city's densest urban neighborhood, incorporating the highest potential density of commercial and residential land use.
	 ACTION LU 3.4.3 - Encourage a 24-hour downtown with a diverse mix of uses and activation at all different times of the day.
	 STRATEGY LU 3.6 - Encourage development that fills existing market gaps and provides for the necessities of life.
	 ACTION LU 3.6.3 - Encourage infill development on underutilized surface parking lots, particularly in the downtown area.
	 GOAL LU 4 - Redevelopment, revitalization, and enhancement programs are focused in areas that have been economically disadvantaged.
	 ACTION LU 4.2.3 - Evaluate dedicating a portion of the ad valorem increment generated by TIF Districts located within the Tulsa Public School District catchment area to the school district.
	 STRATEGY LU 4.4 - Promote the adaptive reuse and rehabilitation of vacant or underutilized structures and buildable land to aid the revitalization of area neighborhoods and development of affordable housing.
	 GOAL LU 6 - Commercial areas and activity centers complement their surrounding uses.
	 STRATEGY LU 6.2 - Encourage transit-oriented commercial, mixed-use, and residential development along existing and planned bus rapid transit (BRT) routes.
	 ACTION LU 6.2.3 - Support higher-density residential development along BRT corridors in locations identified in corresponding Land Use Frameworks.
	 GOAL LU 8 - Tulsa's natural and architectural assets are preserved and enhanced.
	 GOAL LU 9 - Tulsa is a leader in sustainable development practices.
	 STRATEGY LU 9.2 - Support and incentivize adaptive reuse of buildings, infill development, and brownfield redevelopment.
	 GOAL LU 10 - Future growth is balanced with the ability to provide public services and infrastructure.
	 STRATEGY LU 10.2 - Prioritize compact development and infill development for more efficient use of existing infrastructure and services.
	Transportation
	 STRATEGY TR 5.2 - Ensure land use decisions are reflective of and responsive to the transportation infrastructure context.
	 ACTION TR 5.2.1 - Encourage compact and infill development to optimize the use of existing infrastructure.
	 ACTION TR 5.2.2 - Encourage mixed-use developments and housing near employment areas to decrease long vehicle trips.
	Economic Development

	 GOAL ED 1 - Economic growth and development contribute to a prosperous and diverse economy capable of providing access to economic opportunity for all Tulsans.
	 GOAL ED 2 - Local and prospective businesses have easy access to a spectrum of economic development information and resources.
	 STRATEGY ED 2.3 - Maintain and promote access to economic development and revitalization tools, including tax-increment financing (TIF), business improvement districts, the Economic Infrastructure Fund, the Downtown Revolving Loan Fund, and the Prop...
	 GOAL ED 4 - New development supports vibrant, sustainable, transit-oriented communities.
	 STRATEGY ED 4.1 - Encourage infill development in areas served by public transportation.
	 ACTION ED 4.1.2 - Create a comprehensive and flexible package of financial incentives to encourage infill in targeted areas and corridors.
	 STRATEGY ED 4.2 - Ensure that new employment development is well-connected to multimodal transportation networks.
	 ACTION ED 4.2.1 - Incentivize housing and commercial growth along high frequency transit corridors.
	 ACTION ED 4.2.5 - Encourage business expansion along transit routes to increase the amount of goods and services available to riders.
	 STRATEGY ED 4.5 - Ensure adequate infrastructure, utilities, and public safety services are in place for new and proposed development.
	 STRATEGY ED 4.6 - Foster the success of the downtown area through targeted investment, incentives, and revitalization strategies.
	 ACTION ED 4.6.2 - Use increment funding from TIF districts to accomplish downtown area development goals.
	 ACTION ED 4.6.3 - Better integrate downtown area university and college campuses through pedestrian, bike, and bus connections, and encourage additional student housing and support services.
	 GOAL 5 - An adequate and appropriate supply of employment land is maintained to meet local industrial and commercial needs
	 STRATEGY 5.1 - Identify and designate “pad-ready” sites.
	 ACTION 5.1.2 - Leverage existing areas of opportunity where incentives such as New Market Tax Credits or Opportunity Zones are located.
	History, Culture, and Creativity
	 GOAL HCC 1 - Tulsa acknowledges its past, celebrates its diverse cultural landscapes, and embraces opportunities to preserve historic landmarks and cultural resources in all parts of the city.
	 STRATEGY HCC 1.4 - Prevent the loss of historically and architecturally significant structures by encouraging rehabilitation or adaptive reuse over demolition.
	 ACTION HCC 1.4.1 - Assist owners in the pursuit of historic tax credits, grants, and other financial resources for the rehabilitation of historic buildings.
	 GOAL HCC 2 - Black Wall Street and the Historic Greenwood District are memorialized and strengthened through community-driven capital and programmatic initiatives that help to educate residents and visitors of the true historical context and events ...
	 STRATEGY HCC 2.4 - Evaluate approaches to removing physical barriers to reconnect Black Wall Street and the Greenwood-Unity-Heritage neighborhoods.
	Public Services
	 GOAL PS 1 - Tulsa’s land use pattern enables efficient and cost-effective distribution of public services.
	 STRATEGY PS 1.3 - Encourage infill development or development that is currently served by existing City services and infrastructure.
	D. Downtown Area Master Plan
	The Downtown Area Master Plan has recommendations that align with the objectives of the Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and the supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts.

	Design Guidelines Summary
	7. Historic and architecturally significant buildings should be rehabilitated and leased to new tenants as the highest preference.
	E. Brady Arts District Small Area Plan
	The Brady Arts District Small Area Plan has Goals and Actions that align with the objectives of the Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and the supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts.

	 Goal 1 - Create and maintain a historic and aesthetically distinctive area.
	 Preserve/restore historic structures and other assets
	 Goal 3 - Encourage amenities that benefit a mixed-use community
	 Preserve/restore historic structures and other assets
	 Action 23 - Offer mixed urban lifestyle options and other strategies to attract new residents.
	 Action 24 - Continue efforts to renovate upper levels of historic buildings for housing.
	 Action 29 - Develop strategies to bring capital partners to the table to encourage investing.
	F. Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan
	The Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan has recommendations that align with the objectives of the Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and the supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts.

	 Goal 4 - Capitalize on OSU-Tulsa, Langston University Tulsa, and proximity to Downtown to spur redevelopment of the southern edge of the Unity Heritage Area.
	 Goal 7 – Enhance local commerce and access to important goods and services.
	Staff Recommendation

	The Objectives and Principal Actions in the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan and supporting Tax Increment Financing Districts are consistent with the Major Street & Highway Plan, Land Use Map, Comprehensive Plan Prioritie...
	Attachment

	 Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan

	Second Amended Downtown Plan 1.22.26

	2026-02-04-TMAPC-Agenda.pdf
	Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission
	Tulsa City Council Chambers, 175 E. 2nd St., Tulsa, OK 74103
	Introduction and Notice to the Public
	How to Participate

	Call to Order
	Reports
	Chairperson’s Report
	Director’s Report
	Approval of Minutes
	Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the following:
	1. Minutes from Meeting 2953, January 21, 2026

	Consent Agenda
	Public Hearing – Rezoning
	Review and possible recommendation of approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the following:
	2. CZ-577 (County)  Withdrawn by applicant

	County Commission District: 2
	Applicant: Belinda A. Bentley
	Action Requested: Rezoning from AG-R to AG (Continued from January 7, 2026)
	3. MPD-6

	Location: Multiple properties bounded by U.S. Highway 412, East 41st Street South, South 193rd East Avenue, and South 273rd East Avenue
	City Council District: 6
	Applicant: Fair Oaks Ranch, LLC and Rob-Wal, LLC
	Action Requested: Rezoning from AG to MPD-6 (Continued from November 5, 2025, and January 7, 2026)
	4. PUD-876 (County)

	Public Hearing - Plats
	5. 126th Business Park (County)
	6. Air Guard Substation

	Public Hearing – Accelerated Release of a Building Permit
	7. LDF Park

	Public Hearing – Comprehensive Plan Conformance
	8. Consider adopting a resolution of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission determining that the Second Amended Downtown Area Economic Development Project Plan is in conformance with the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan and recommend its approval to ...

	Other Business
	9. Commissioners’ Comments

	Adjournment




